
2011/2012 Annual Report



To improve the health and wellbeing of our community.

Vision:

West Gippsland Healthcare Group is committed to the provision of high
quality, integrated health care that meets the changing needs of individuals
and our community.

Mission:

Our Customers � be committed to continuity of care for individuals
whilst recognising rights, responsibilities and
participation

Our Community � be a responsible corporate citizen and
neighbour in caring for our community
and environment

Our Staff � we are committed to our staff’s wellbeing
and ongoing development

Leadership � be a role model in the planning and delivery
of health services

Improving Performance � ensure continuous quality improvement.

We value:

The Annual Report seeks to present critical performance information
in an open, clear and reader-friendly manner.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group is committed to bench marking
performance against best practice. For this reason we prepare our
Annual Report against the criteria set by Department of Health (DH)
guidelines indicating our commitment to provide quality reporting
to stakeholders.

The Annual Report:

Kim Dorling, Emergency Department Associate Nurse Unit Manager,
jumps for joy at the commencement of our Emergency Department
major redevelopment project in 2011.

Front Cover:
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2012 2011 % +/-
variance

20011/12 Year in Brief

FINANCIALS 000’s 000’s

Total Revenue $79,680 $78,217 1.87

Total Expenditure $84,314 $79,607 5.69

Net Result for the Year ($4,634) ($1,390) (320.86)

Total Assets $82,944 $85,081 (2.51)

Total Liabilities $21,568 $19,710 8.54

Net Assets $61,376 $65,371 (5.85)

Total Equity $61,376 $65,371 (5.85)

STAFF

Equivalent Full Time 664.48 652.03 1.91

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Inpatients Treated:
Hospital 13,212 11,064 19.41
Nursing Home 71 78 (8.97)
Hostel 70 69 1.45

Average Length of Stay:
Hospital 2.36 2.63 (10.27)

Bed Days:
Hospital 31,182 29,044 7.36
Nursing Home 21,243 20,733 2.46
Hostel 17,860 17,755 0.59

Non-Admitted
Patient Services: 89,845 87,872 2.25

DONATIONS $000’s

Income $523 $1,022 (48.83)
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Significant Events
� Emergency Department redevelopment project commenced
� Mary Sargeant Wing building works completed resulting in new physicians consulting

rooms, new education and teleconferencing facilities and a new home for the District
Nursing Service 

� Number of births totalled 881, a record breaking year 
� Inpatients treated was 13,212 well above our target of 11,200 and last year’s actual

number of 11,058 patients
� Emergency Department treated over 20,000 patients, a record breaking year
� Introduction of the low level 2 nursery to support newborns requiring additional care
� Significant growth in haemodialysis and oncology services 
� Retirement of long servicing CEO Ormond Pearson after 14 years of service
� Appointment and commencement of new CEO Dan Weeks 
� Installation of an emergency generator to run all services in the event of a power outage
� Full accreditation awarded by the Australian Council of Healthcare Standards (ACHS)

and the Aged Care Accreditations and Standards Agency (ACSAA)
� Warragul Linen Service ISO 9001 accreditation maintained
� The appointment of a Geriatrician specialist
� Redesigning Care initiative ‘Releasing Time to Care’ launched
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Report of Operations 
Charter and purpose
FRD 22C Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers 34
FRD 22C Objectives, functions, powers and duties 34
FRD 22C Nature and range of services provided 4

Management and structure
FRD 22C Organisational structure 36

Financial and other information
FRD 10 Disclosure index 2
FRD 11 Disclosure of ex-gratia payments N/A
FRD 15B Executive Officer Disclosures 87
FRD 21A Responsible person and executive officer disclosures 86
FRD 22C Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 3
FRD 22C Application and operation of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 3
FRD 22C Details of consultancies over $10,000 2
FRD 22C Details of consultancies under $10,000 2
FRD 22C Major changes or factors affecting performance 5
FRD 22C Occupational health and safety 29
FRD 22C Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives 1, 8
FRD 22C Significant changes in financial position during the year 8
FRD 22C Statement of availability of other information 3
FRD 22C Statement on National Competition Policy 3
FRD 22C Subsequent events 87
FRD 22C Summary of the financial results for the year 8, 13
FRD 22C Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement of the applications of employment

and conduct principles 14
FRD 25 Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures 3
SD 3.4.13 Attestation on Data Integrity 33
SD 4.2(j) Sign off requirements 33
SD 4.5.5 Attestation on Compliance with Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard 20

Financial Statements
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD 4.2(a) Statement of changes in equity 47
SD 4.2(b) Operating Statement 45
SD 4.2(b) Balance Sheet 46
SD 4.2(b) Cash Flow Statement 48

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD 4.2(a) Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative pronouncements 49
SD 4.2(c) Accountable officer’s declaration 88
SD 4.2(c) Compliance with Ministerial Directions 49
SD 4.2(d) Rounding of amounts 56

Legislation Requirement Page

The Annual Report of the West Gippsland Healthcare Group is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation.
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Disclosure Index

Legislation
Freedom of Information Act 1982 3
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 3
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 3
Building Act 1993 3
Financial Management Act 1994 88

Total Expenditure Future
Consultant Purpose of Consultancy Start date End date Approved Fee 2011-12 Expenditure
Over 10k
P2 Group Human Resource Management Oct-11 Ongoing Ongoing 143 Ongoing
Suters Project Consultants - EDredevelopment Jun-11 Ongoing 369 276 93
Attend Anywhere Pty Ltd Strategic Planning Sep-11 Mar-12 15 15 -
Inside Health Management Strategic Planning Sep-11 Sep-11 20 20 -

Under 10k
In 2011-12 West Gippsland Healthcare Group engaged 14 consultants where the total fees payable to the consultants were less than $10,000 with a total
expenditure of $36,979.
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group charges fees in accordance
with Department of Health Victoria directives issued under
Regulation 8 of the Hospital and Charities (Fees) Regulations,
1986 as amended.

The Freedom of Information officer is the Manager, Health
Information Services, with final approval by the Director of
Medical Services. Consumers wishing to access documents
may contact the Freedom of Information officer on 03 5623
0611 and access details will be provided. During 2011/12
year, 89 requests for information under the regulations of the
Freedom of Information Act 1982 were received. Access was
granted in full to 74 applicants and the average processing
time was 29.4 days.

All renovations to existing buildings conform to the Building
Act 1993. All existing buildings complete with regulations in
force at the time of construction. There are no orders to cease
occupancy or to undertake urgent works. All sites are subject
to a Fire Safety Audit and Risk Assessment according to
revised standards as directed by the Department of Health.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group is committed to the
principles of this Act and has policies and procedures in
place to enable full compliance. The Act is designed to protect
people who disclose information about serious wrongdoings
within the Victorian Public Sector and to provide a framework
for the investigation of these matters. A copy of the Act and
a summary of its provisions is available for inspection at the
office of the Chief Executive Officer. Disclosures made under
this policy will be investigated swiftly, professionally and
discretely. No disclosures under the Act were received
during 2011/12.

Disclosures may be made to:

Chief Executive Officer
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
41 Landsborough Street, Warragul 3820
Telephone: 03 5623 0631 Facsimile: 03 5623 0896
email: info@wghg.com.au

or

President
Board of Directors
West Gippsland Healthcare Group
41 Landsborough Street, Warragul 3820
Telephone: 03 5623 0631 Facsimile: 03 5623 0896
email: info@wghg.com.au

or

The Ombudsman
Level 22
459 Collins Street, Melbourne 3000
Telephone: 03 9613 6222 Facsimile: 03 9614 0246
Toll Free: 1800 806 314

Information listed in FRD 22C Appendix is available on request
by relevant Ministers, Melbourne of Parliament and the public.

It is Government policy that the costing policies of publicly
funded organisations should reflect any competitive advantage
available to the private sector. During 2011/12 all competitive
neutrality requirements were met.

There were four consultants over $10,000. Consultants
engaged under $10,000 totalled 14. Consultancies are
listed on page 2 of this report.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group complies with the Building
Act 1993 which encompasses the Building Code of Australia
and Standards for Publicly Owned Buildings November 1994.

Buildings
Buildings certified for approval 1

Constructions subject to mandatory inspections 1

Certificate of final inspection 1

Maintenance

Notice for urgent rectification, attention
or major expenditure were received Nil

All renovations to existing buildings comply with
Regulations and standards including the
Building Code of Australia Yes

Orders to cease occupancy Nil

There was no overseas travel taken during the year 2011/2012. 

Freedom of Information

Other Information

West Gippsland Healthcare Group did not award contracts
to Victorian Industry Participation Policy for the year 2011/12.

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Disclosures

Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001

Overseas Travel

Competitive Neutrality

Consultants

Conformity

Statement of Fees and Charging Rates Building Maintenance

Statutory Reporting
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Our History

1888 The community establishes a hospital on land donated by
Mary Sargeant to service the area between Melbourne and Sale

1895 Warragul District Hospital completed
1908 Warragul District Hospital officially opened
1924 The Board of Management changed the name to West Gippsland

Hospital (WGH) in recognition of the wider area serviced
1936 The original wooden hospital building redeveloped
1939 The Foundation stone of the new brick hospital we see today

was laid by Mr. Dunstan
1940 The new hospital opened by Sir Winston Duggan
1970 Eastern extensions to the hospital opened. The hospital now

has 144 beds
1978 Stage 1 of Cooinda Lodge nursing home built, accommodating

28 residents
1986 Stage 2 of Cooinda Lodge added, accommodating 56 residents

The Warragul Linen Service moved into purpose-built premises
in Ley Street behind the hospital

1996 A Community Services Centre was established in the township
of Warragul
Stage 1 Redevelopment of West Gippsland Hospital completed

1997 The various health services provided across the community are
brought together under the umbrella name of West Gippsland
Healthcare Group (WGHG).
Rawson Community Health Centre incorporated into WGHG
Andrews House hostel opens, accommodating 30 residents

1998 Baw Baw Health and Community Care Centre opens in Drouin,
a joint venture with the Shire of Baw Baw
Stage 2 Redevelopment of West Gippsland Hospital officially
opened

2005 Extensions to Andrews House in Trafalgar completed,
now accommodating 50 residents
Queen Street Community Services building redeveloped
Extensions to Warragul Linen Service completed to
accommodate new continuous batch washing system

2006 Community Rehabilitation Centre relocation project commenced
Stage 3 Redevelopment of West Gippsland Hospital, incorporating
the High Dependency and Midwifery Units, completed

2007 Community Health and Community Mental Health project
completed

2008 Community Rehabilitation Centre redevelopment underneath
Cooinda Lodge completed
Centenary of opening of first Warragul District Hospital celebrated
Centenary history book ‘Of the People...For the People’ and
Centenary quilt launched

2009 WGHG awarded Premier’s Award for Regional Health Service
of the Year

2010 WGH Drouin Auxiliary 50th anniversary celebrated
Permanent home purchased for Trafalgar Community Health
Services
Extensions to Drouin Opp Shop completed

2011 Feasibility study for redevelopment of West Gippsland Hospital
site commenced

2012 Building extension works commenced to the Emergency
Department 
New physicians consulting rooms, education facilities,
teleconferencing facilities and a new home for the District
Nursing Service completed

Overview: Our Profile

Hospital (acute)
Anaesthesia
Breast Surgery
Community Rehabilitation Centre
Day Surgery
Dental Surgery
Diabetes Education
Ear Nose and Throat Surgery
Emergency
Endoscopy
General Medicine
General Practice
General Surgery
Haemodialysis
High Dependency
Midwifery
Neurology
Obstetrics/Gynaecology
Oncology
Opthamology
Orthopaedic Surgery
Paediatrics
Paediatric Surgery
Plastic Surgery
Post Acute Care
Pre-admission
Rheumatology
Stomal Therapy
Urology and Urodynamics

Sub-acute
Cognitive Dementia and Memory

Service (CDAMS)
Continence
Geriatric Evaluation and

Management (GEM)
Hospital Admission Risk Program

(HARP)
Interim Care
Palliative Care

Aged Care
Aged Care Assessment
Andrews House Aged Care Facility
Cooinda Lodge Aged Care facility
Home & Community Care Services
Respite Care

Community Health Services
Aboriginal Support Service
Adolescent Health
Asthma Education
Counselling
Diabetes Education
Emergency Relief
Falls Prevention
Family Counselling

Health Promotion
Rural Allied Health Service
Self Help and Support Group

Facilitation
Women’s and Men’s Health
Worker Health Check Program
Youth Services

Allied Health
Cardiac Rehabilitation
Chronic Obstructive Airways

Disease (COAD) Program
Diabetes
Nutrition and Dietetics
Occupational Therapy
Pharmacy
Physiotherapy
Podiatry
Social Work
Speech Pathology

Home Nursing Service
District Nursing Service
Hospital in the Home
Palliative Care Nursing/Volunteers

Support Services
Administration
Engineering
Environmental Services
Finance
Food Services
Health Information
Infection Control
Information Technology
Library
Occupational Health and Safety
Payroll
Public Relations
Quality & Customer Service
Staff Development
Supply

Business Units
Consulting Suites
Meals on Wheels
Salary Packaging
Warragul Linen Service

Diagnostic Services
(Contract Services)
BreastScreen
Endoscopy
Lung Function Testing
Medical Imaging
Pathology
Stress Electro Cardiographs
Stress Echo Cardiographs

West Gippsland Healthcare Group (WGHG) is a customer
focused health organisation providing acute care, residential
care and community health services to 45,000 people in
the rural, urban residential, agricultural and industrial areas
located within the Baw Baw Shire and beyond.

Our Services: What we do



5

Overview: President and Chief Executive Officer’s Report
On behalf of the Board of Management of West Gippsland
Healthcare Group (WGHG) we are pleased to present the
Annual Report for the year ending 30th June 2012, prepared
in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994. 

The President and Chief Executive Officer’s report highlights
the major achievements and events that occurred during
the year. Further detailed reports and the audited financial
statements follow.

Acknowledgements
Once again WGHG received outstanding support from
Community groups, Auxiliaries and individuals who have
generously donated time and money to help us deliver
services. The assistance provided to staff by volunteers
and the extra equipment we are able to purchase through
donations is very much appreciated.

We use this opportunity to thank and acknowledge the
many service partners with whom WGHG rely on and
interact with in the delivery of integrated health services,
including regional health services, universities and TAFEs,
the Department of Health and the Baw Baw Shire Council.
The Council is a major partner and provides a valuable
financial contribution to support the service at Rawson
and the Youth counselling service. 

We also thank and acknowledge the support received from
our local politicians Member for Narracan Gary Blackwood,
Member for McMillan Russell Broadbent and Member for
South Eastern Province Matt Viney.

The commitment of the Board of Directors, who are not
remunerated for their time and effort, to provide good
governance is greatly appreciated, as is the contribution
of the members of the Community Advisory Council, under
the leadership of Rosemary Joiner, and the Human Ethics
Advisory Committee, both of which include
community members. We are also grateful for the support
and input of the Medical Staff Association, under the
leadership of Dr Bruce Maydom.

We also acknowledge and express our appreciation to
all of the staff who work so hard to deliver the level of
services the community deserves. In often difficult and
stressful conditions, the commitment and professionalism
of staff is commendable.

Finally, but not in the least, the Board and Management of
the Healthcare Group would like to thank the community
of the Baw Baw region for the ongoing support during
the year and we look forward to being able to serve the
community well and capably for the long term.

Clinical
It has been a very busy year for the organisation, with
demand for services significantly exceeding our funding
allocation, resulting in a financial deficit for the year. 

The population in the Baw Baw Shire continues to grow
at a rate faster than State average, and the number of
inpatients treated at West Gippsland Hospital was 13,211
which was well above our target of 11,200 and last year’s
actual number of 11,058 patients.

There were a record number of presentations to the
Emergency Department, exceeding 20,000. This is a growth
of nearly 5,000 patients in five years. The ability of the staff
to meet the agreed State target of 70% of patients being
treated and leaving the Department within four hours from
December to June was an outstanding effort.

Obstetrics was also busy, with the number of births for
the year 881, an increase of 61 above last year and more
than 75 higher than the previous five year average number
of births. The implementation process to introduce the low
level 2 nursery to support the growing obstetric service and
newborns requiring additional care was a significant
additional step in the service capability of the hospital.

The increased patient numbers put significant pressure
on the elective surgery program, and as was forecast in
January, theatre was scaled back over Easter and ANZAC
Day. The number of operations performed was 3,209 which
were only 124 less than last year. By the end of June, the
total number of patients on the waiting list had grown to
779 significantly exceeding our target of 478. This is
reflective of the growth in demand for services at the
hospital and it is unlikely that with current resources a
reduction of the waiting list will occur into the foreseeable
future.

There was also significant growth in haemodialysis and
oncology services, palliative care and Geriatric Evaluation
& Management. While restorative care usage was below
target, our partnership with Neerim District Health Service,
which provides restorative and transition care beds and an
ophthalmology service for WGHG, remains strong.

The demand for residential aged care at Cooinda Lodge
and Andrews House in Trafalgar remains robust, with
occupancy levels at 96.7% and 97.6%. While there is
still no word on funding for a new Cooinda Lodge it is
understood to be high on the list of capital programs for
the Gippsland region. Both homes have undertaken minor
capital works to improve the comfort for residents. 

The community based programs (delivered from four sites
in Drouin, Warragul, Trafalgar and Rawson) remain popular
and there is continued and growing demand for services.
Despite additional funding from the Department of Health
for Rural Allied Health and Continence services, waiting lists
are developing for most programs. A service review of the
Rawson Community Health Service has commenced and
the Rawson Auxiliary is working closely with WGHG to help
determine a sustainable and affordable service mix. While
the number of hours of service delivery will be reduced
to reflect the levels of demand, and some activities will
be transferred to the Auxiliary to manage, the ongoing
provision of services is secure. 

Work with our Aboriginal Community continues to grow,
with the successful implementation of a Drumbeat program
for the Aboriginal young people and an Aboriginal Family
School Holiday program delivered this year.

Despite the efforts to manage activity in the hospital, by
the end of the year, we had delivered a significant amount
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of work that was above target, partially offset by contractual
arrangements with other Gippsland health services that
were experiencing less demand. Managing the growing
demand will continue to be a challenge into the future,
particularly as the community continues to grow.

Corporate

The governance of WGHG remains strong, with Barry Rogers
joining the Board in July 2011 and Directors Brian Davey,
John Davine and Duncan Smith reappointed by the Governor
in Council. At the end of June the Board farewelled retiring
Director Tony Wolfe, who joined the Board in 2006. The
Board thank and acknowledge the valuable contribution
of Tony to the Board during his six years. 

Brian Davey was elected Board President in July, in time to
complete the recruitment process for a new Chief Executive
Officer as long serving CEO Ormond Pearson announced his
retirement. Ormond provided excellent leadership to the group
during his 14 years as Chief Executive Officer and was held in
high regard.

Dan Weeks was the successful applicant and commenced
in the role of Chief Executive Officer in November 2011,
having previously been the Chief Executive at Benalla Health
and Numurkah District Health Service. Dan has a nursing
background and punctuated his long experience in health
by gaining qualifications and working as an accountant. He
is an experienced health services surveyor with the Australian
Council on Healthcare Standards and the Board is pleased to
support this ongoing role.

WGHG also farewelled John Anderson, Director of Corporate
Services, and welcomed Justin Walsh to the role in December
2011. Justin was well known to many staff as he had previously
been the Finance Manager at WGHG from 2003-2007 before
accepting the position of Business Manager, Operations and
Ambulatory & Community Care, Casey and Cranbourne
campuses of Southern Health. He has very quickly settled
into the role and has demonstrated great financial
management expertise.

We are pleased to report that the building works in
the Emergency Department announced last year have
commenced, and are expected to continue into the early
part of 2013. The works, funded by State and Commonwealth
grants and a significant donation from the Andrews Foundation
have grown in scope in response to the rapid growth in
demand, and will now double the capacity of the Department.
When complete, this will be a huge relief for staff who have had
to cope with record demand in very difficult conditions. Patients
will also gain significant benefit from the revamped department
with patient flows, access to cubicles and improved admission
processes just some of the outcomes expected.

The building works to the remaining sections of the Mary
Sargeant Wing were completed, resulting in new physicians
consulting rooms, education facilities, teleconferencing facilities
and a new home for the District Nursing Service. The work
was done in partnership and with funding from Monash
University Gippsland Regional Clinical School and the

Gippsland Regional Integrated Cancer Service. This has greatly
enhanced the educational opportunities for the many students
that gain experience at WGHG.

The Warragul Linen Service continues to be a prized business
unit for WGHG and generates much valued income to help
subsidise the services provided. The contracts with major
hospitals such as Southern Health and Alfred Health, and
a number of other contracts have seen production at record
levels of over 141,000kgs per week. New equipment purchases
and constantly reviewing production processes ensure
continuous efficiency improvements. It is fair to say that the
hospital could not offer some of the key services it does if not
for the income provided by the linen service.

We were very pleased to upgrade our generator, thanks to a
grant from the Department of Health that allowed us to secure
the old generator from the Royal Children’s Hospital. This
generator will allow us to run all of our services in the event
of a power failure.

The Feasibility Study that commenced last year to explore the
options of either redeveloping the hospital on the current site,
or building a new hospital on the land owned by WGHG at
Lardner’s Track continued throughout the year. While the
Project Control Group endorsed the final report in July 2012,
the report has not yet been released by the Department of
Health. Identification of a preferred site is only the first step
in a very long process that has no certainty of attracting the
required levels of government funding. However, advocating
for a new hospital is a major goal for the Board as a hospital
on a greenfield’s site is seen as the best long term solution for
the healthcare needs of this community.

Patient Matthew Roberts and Dr Anas Ghazal in the Emergency
Department corridor in May 2012.

Support
During the year the health and aged care services were
surveyed by the Australian Council on Healthcare Standards
(ACHS) and the Aged Care Accreditations and Standards
Agency. The commitment of the staff to quality and excellence
in care delivery was reflected with full accreditation awarded
by ACHS (including an Outstanding Achievement in the Quality
Improvement Standard) and both Andrews House and Cooinda 
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Dan Weeks
Chief Executive

Brian Davey
President

Lodge achieving all 44 aged care standards. A number of other
important, but less extensive accreditation processes (such
as cleaning audits, hand hygiene, food safety program) were
also successfully maintained. This achievement cannot be
understated as the accreditation process is rigorous and
demanding on staff and systems. The Healthcare Group has
very good quality systems, however these are only as good
as the people who implement them and our Healthcare Group
has very good people.

The Warragul Linen Service also maintained accreditation of
its ISO quality management system. This international standard
specifies best practice in quality management and is used
effectively by the business to maintain the highest levels of
service to our customers and provide a financial return to
WGHG.

The Victorian Patient Satisfaction Monitor, managed by the
Department of Health, continues to reflect a high satisfaction
rate of patients with the care and services provided at West
Gippsland Hospital. The People Matters staff satisfaction survey,
managed by the State Services Authority also shows strong
results for the organisation, with 91% of staff responding
“Working for my organisation makes me proud”.

The environmental focus has continued, with WGHG accepting
an invitation to participate in the first round of a public health
Energy Performance Contracting program. Energy Performance
Contracting (EPC) is aimed to deliver energy and water
efficiency, generating guaranteed savings. The program
is scheduled to commence during 2012/13.

Obituaries
It is with sadness we note the passing of Dot Mullett who
worked as our Aboriginal Hospital Liaison Officer for almost
26 years and the Warragul Linen Service maintenance
supervisor, Graham Peterson. Our sympathy is extended
to Dot and Graham’s families and friends.

Outlook
The year ahead is likely to be very challenging for West
Gippsland Healthcare Group, as we struggle to balance
our funding allocation with the ever increasing demand for
services. The pressure on elective surgery and the waiting lists
is expected to increase. We also have to address the pressures
on the Emergency Department, and will review the staffing of
the Department as we prepare for the increase in size. 

In July 2012 we have commenced the no gaps private patient
scheme to encourage patients with private health insurance
to use that insurance for the benefit of the hospital. We look
forward to fully implementing the system over the next few
months and have set a target of 15% of private patients.
This is a critical strategy for the hospital as it provides both
a revenue stream and takes pressure off public funding. The
benefit to patients is that they see no difference in the service
level, will receive no bills or paperwork and will help contribute
to the long term viability of the hospital.

We need to contain spending and address the deficit position
that has occurred in this financial year. The Board is committed
to strengthening its Governance role and ensuring that the
first priority is to treat people from our own community and
catchment.

We are also planning to implement some new and innovative
models of practice, including the introduction of electronic
prescribing for medications on the wards and releasing time
for care by more effectively managing non patient tasks.

Victoria is transitioning to the new Commonwealth Health
reforms, with many changes to funding and reporting for health
services, which add another level of complexity as we prepare
for even more changes the following year. The Board and
Executive are confident that we will meet these challenges
and continue the proud reputation for service that West
Gippsland Healthcare Group has established.
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Equity/Assets - Viability

The equity/assets graph shows the ratio of assets funded by the
Group and the assets funded by borrowings. The graph indicates
the Group continues to be stable at 74% for every dollar of assets
held.

2011

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8

0.77

2010 0.79

2009 0.80

2008 0.71

2012 0.74

Quick Asset Ratio - Liquidity

The quick asset ratio indicates the Group’s ability to meet its
financial commitments during the next 60 days.

2011
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2010 1.03
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2012 0.92
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Current Ratio - Solvency

The current ratio indicates the Group’s ability to meet financial
commitments over the next 12 months.
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2012 0.94
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2011 1.09

The Group reported total revenue of $79.68m, an increase
of 1.87% on 2010/11 ($78.217m). This comprises operating
revenue of $74.273m (up 5.6% on 2010/11 $70.337m)
and non-operating revenue of $5.407m (down 31.4%
on 2010/11 that had included one off Commonwealth
funding of $2m and a $500k donation from the Andrews
Foundation). Donations and bequests from the community
totalled $523k for 2011/12.

Total Expenditure for the Group was $84.31m, an increase
of 5.9% on 2010/11 of $79.607m. Operating expenditure
was $78.392m (up 6.79% on 2010/11 $73.411m) and
non-operating expenditure $5.92m (up 0.237% on
2010/11 $5.91m). Employee expenses were $54.25m
and represented the biggest increase in expenditure
by category year on year, with an increase of 7.74%
on 2010/11 ($50.351m).

The net operating result for the Group was a loss of
$1.313m, compared to a $30k loss in the prior financial
year. The acute care program continues to run at a
growing operating deficit, attributed largely to activity
levels exceeding targets. 

High demand for acute services throughout the year led
to significant increases in inpatient bed days (up 7.36%
to 31,182), emergency presentations (up 4.99% to 20,051)
and total WIES of 7,572 (247 WIES above target or 3.26%).
The Group’s Public/Private WIES performance was 428.59
WIES above the capped funded target of 6,997. The Group
successfully entered into a contracted care arrangement in
the second half of 2011/12 with two other public hospitals
in the Gippsland region which enabled some marginal
funding to be earned for this activity that otherwise would
be unfunded by the DH. This represented 249 WIES
which is not reported in the WGHG VAED data but is
instead reported by the contracting health service.

The net result after capital items was a loss of $4.634m
compared to a loss of $1.39m in 2010/11. Depreciation
and amortisation expenses totalled $5.753 million. 

Despite recording an operating deficit for the year, the
Group was able to generate a cash surplus from operations
of $1.594m ($1.955m in 2010/11). After allowing for capital
acquisitions of $4.53m, the overall cash position declined
$1.24m to $12.17m. Cash payments for the Emergency
Department redevelopment totalled $773k, the funding
for which was received in 2010/11.

The Group’s overall financial position declined by $4.634m
to $61.376m. Cash reserves remain strong at $12.17m.

Looking forward, the 2012/13 financial year will be a
challenging year for the Group to live within the activity
targets and only deliver services to funded levels. The
Group is working actively to model the impact of the
change to a new national activity based funding system,
with 2012/13 being a shadow funding year. 

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in
compliance with the Financial Management Act 1994 (Vic)
and subject to audit by the Auditor General of Victoria (see
Auditor General’s Report). An unqualified audit opinion has
been issued for these financial statements.
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Statement of Priorities and Health Service Agreement
A Health Service Agreement and Statement of Priorities are negotiated between WGHG and the Department of Health.
Conditions of funding, with an emphasis on targets for planned growth and payment according to the performance of
agreed services, are incorporated into the Health Service Agreement and Statement of Priorities and performance against
those targets is measured.

Strategic Priorities for 2011-2012: Part A

Health Service Strategy Deliverable Outcome

1. Provide appropriate services
to our community

� Maintain accreditation status with ACHS
and Aged Care Standards and AS:NZS ISO
9001:2000 certification for Warragul Linen
Service

� Achieve agreed HSA targets
� Progress transition to Level 2 Nursery
� Continue with Redesigning Care program
� Participate in the implementation of the

Regional Close the Gap Strategy Action
Plan through the Gippsland Consortia

� Full accreditation achieved with ACHS,
ACSAA and ISO certification

� Activity targets met or exceeded
� Business case developed and staff training

implemented. Submission to Department for
registration prepared

� Redesigning Care program successful in
reducing time from admission to discharge
for day surgery patients. Continues to deliver
sustained improvements in patient flows in
Day surgery and improved response time
for Physio and OT following redesign project
in Rural Allied Health team

� Provided successful Aboriginal Family School
Holiday program and Drumming program

� Implement recommendations from Workforce
Plan
- Task Group to address recommendations
- Building Positive Attendance to reduce

absenteeism
� Front Line Management Course continued
� Continue Cultural Awareness training

� Board has approved establishment of
a Human Resources Department, which
is the major strategy to address the
recommendations of the Workforce Plan.
Recruitment process for HR Manager has
commenced

� Building positive attendance to reduce
absenteeism education in progress

� Front Line Management course held with
18 participants

� Completed cultural training for Counselling
and Health Promotion team

� Complete Feasibility Study/for redevelopment
of West Gippsland Healthcare Group

� Complete interim works to Emergency
Department – additional five cubicles

� Complete capital works projects in conjunction
with Monash University incorporating extensions
to physician consulting rooms

� Redevelop Mary Sargeant building to
accommodate DNS/Ambulatory Care Services

� Work with GHA to implement BOSSnet clinical
system

� Project Control Group identified preferred
option but endorsement delayed due to process
required to gain Department of Health approval

� Emergency Department works commenced
and scope expanded to double cubicle capacity

� Capital works to project to extend Physician
consulting rooms in conjunction with Monash
University completed

� Capital works to Mary Sargeant Wing
completed and District Nursing relocated

� BOSSnet clinical system was trialled in the High
Dependency Unit and is being implemented in
the Medical and Surgical Wards

2. Sustain and Strengthen our Workforce

3. Maintain and Develop Infrastructure

4. Improve Financial Viability � Continue to implement recommendations from
Paxton Partners Review eg: private patients

� Use Hospital Round Table data to identify
opportunities to reduce variation in length
of stay

� Focus on improving WorkCover performance

� Preparation for implementation of Private
patient scheme in July 2012 undertaken
and Private Patient Liaison Officer appointed

� Identified areas of opportunity with top 10
DRG’s and reviewing options to increase
use of Hospital in the Home 

� WorkCover claims decreased by 47% and
claims cost reduced to $60,500 resulting
in WorkCover premiums savings of 27%
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Strategic Priorities for 2011-2012: Part A (continued)

Health Service Strategy Deliverable Outcome

� Continue implementation of Communication
Strategy for West Gippsland Healthcare Group

� Continue with environmental impact focus eg:
reduce usage/waste in water and electricity

� Seek to develop innovative clinical programs
and models of care to assist in meeting
demand growth

� Preparation for implementation of Private patient
scheme in July 2012 undertaken and Private
Patient Liaison Officer appointed

� Engaged with community via regular newspaper
articles and publications, including media
releases. Ongoing regular communication with
key stakeholders has been maintained

� Participating in Energy Performance Contracting
initiative under the Victorian Greening Hospitals
program

� Reduced gas usage by 2% in 2011/12 and
electricity levels maintained despite increased
activity 

� ICOP and GRICCS have strengthened care
pathways

� Geriatrician appointed and has improved GEM,
TCP and Restorative Care programs

� Improved referral in Emergency Department
has decreased admission times for paediatric
patients

� Releasing time to care Productive Ward
series commenced to increase efficiency
and baseline data collected

5. Sustain and Strengthen the Community
Awareness, Confidence and Value of
West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Performance Priorities: Part B

Financial Performance

Key Performance Indicator Target Actual

Operating result
Annual operating result ($m) (0.212) (1.31m)

Cash management
Creditors <60 days 50.20 days
Debtors <60 days 38.35 days

Access Performance

Key Performance Indicator Target Actuals

Emergency Care
Percentage of emergency patients transferred to an inpatient bed within 8 hours 80% 70%
Percentage of non-admitted emergency patients with a length of stay less than 4 hours 80% 84%
Number of patients with a length of stay in the emergency department greater than 24 hours 0 106
Percentage of Triage Category 1 emergency patients seen immediately 100% 100%
Percentage of Triage Category 2 emergency patients seen within 10 minutes 80% 82%
Percentage of Triage Category 3 emergency patients seen within 30 minutes 75% 67%

Percentage of Urgency Category 1 elective patients admitted within 30 days 100% 100%
Percentage of Urgency Category 2 elective surgery patients waiting less than 90 days 80% 79.8%
Percentage of Urgency Category 3 elective surgery patients waiting less than 365 days 90% 92.5%
Number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list (1) 478 779
Number of Hospital Initiated Postponements (HiPs) per 100 scheduled admissions 8 8.7

(1) The target shown is the number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list as at 30 June 2012.
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Performance Priorities: Part B (continued)

Service Performance

Key Performance Indicator Target Actual

WIES(1) Activity Performance
Percentage of WIES (public & private) performance to target 98 - 102 104.5%

Elective surgery
Number of patients admitted from the elective surgery waiting list – quarter 1 611 673
Number of patients admitted from the elective surgery waiting list – quarter 2 598 573
Number of patients admitted from the elective surgery waiting list – quarter 3 551 469
Number of patients admitted from the elective surgery waiting list – quarter 4 567 502

Quality and safety
Health service accreditation Full compliance Full compliance
Residential aged care accreditation Full compliance Full compliance
Residential aged care services organisational readiness tool Full compliance Full compliance
Cleaning standards Full compliance Full compliance
Submission of data to VICNISS(2) Full compliance Full compliance
Hand Hygiene Program compliance rate 65 80.6
Victorian Patient Satisfaction Monitor: (OCI)(3) 73 80

Maternity
Percentage of women with prearranged postnatal home care 100 97
Consumer Participation Indicator(4) 75 83
(1) WIES is a Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation.
(2) VICNISS is the Victorian Hospital Acquired Infection Surveillance System.
(3) The target for the Victorian Patient Satisfaction Monitor is the Overall Care Index (OCI) which comprises six categories
(4) The Consumer Participation Indicator is a category of the Victorian Patient Satisfaction Monitor 

Activity and Funding: Part C

Actual Target % Variance

Acute Patient
WIES Public 7,078 6,914 2.38
WIES Private 28 13 112.62
WIES Public and Private 7,106 6,927 2.58
WIES Rural Patient Initiative 71 70 0.91
WIES Renal 146 105 39.28
WIES DVA 218 194 12.55
WIES Tac 31 29 6.28
WIES Public and Private 7,572 7,325 3.37
Sub-acute Inpatient
GEM Public 1,356 1,034 31.14
Gem DVA 123 209 -41.15
Palliative Care Public 854 730 16.99
Palliative Care DVA 36 25 44.00
Restorative Care 609 823 -26.00
Ambulatory
SACS 9,410 8,020 17.33
SACS DVA 147 435 -66.21
Post Acute Care 1,398 1,184 18.07
Post Acute Care DVA 47 40 17.50
Aged Care
Residential Aged Care 39,103 39,776 -1.69
HACC 22,276 19,699 13.08
Primary Care
Community Health/Primary Care Programs 7,207 6,495 10.96
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Overview: Key Performance Indicators
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2011/2012 Performance Statistics

Inpatients Treated: Hospital 13,212 11,064 19.41
Inpatients Treated: Nursing Home 71 78 (8.97)
Inpatients Treated: Hostel 70 69 1.45
Average Length of Stay: Hospital 2.36 2.63 (10.27)
Bed Days: Hospital 31,182 29,044 7.36
Bed Days: Nursing Home 21,243 20,733 2.46
Bed Days: Hostel 17,860 17,755 0.59
Non-Admitted Patient Services 89,845 87,872 2.25

Inpatient Statistics

Inpatients Treated 13,212 11,064 19.41
Average Complexity 0.5943 0.6498 (8.55)
Complexity Adjusted Inpatients (WIES) 7,572 7,085 6.87
Length of Stay (days) 2.4 2.6 (10.27)
Inpatient bed days 31,182 29,044 7.36
Palliative Care bed days 890 758 17.41
GEM bed days 1,479 1,113 (32.88)
HITH bed days 2,182 2,156 1.21
Number of Operations 3,209 3,333 (3.72)
Number of Births 881 820 7.44

Number on Waiting List 836 598 39.80

Nursing Home Statistics

Residents accommodated 71 78 (8.97)
Resident bed days 21,243 20,733 2.46
Occupancy 96.73% 94.67% 2.18

Hostel Statistics

Residents accommodated 70 69 1.45
Resident bed days 17,860 17,755 0.59
Occupancy 97.60% 97.29% 0.32
Emergency Treatments 20,051 19,098 4.99

Outpatient Services

Occupational Therapy attendances 1,158 1,174 (1.36)
Physiotherapy attendances 1,574 1,271 23.84
Speech Pathology attendances 598 702 (14.81)
Pharmacy attendances 5,567 5,074 9.72

Community Services

Community Health 7,207 7,106 1.42
Rural Allied Health 5,905 5,310 11.21
Health Promotion sessions 1,082 1,996 (45.79)
Palliative Care Contacts 6,371 7,038 (9.48)
Community Rehab. Attendances 6,544 5,481 19.39
District Nursing Visits 16,371 16,775 (2.41)
Meals on Wheels provided 23,547 23,455 0.39
Koori Liaison attendances 153 347 (55.91)

2011/2012 Key Performance Results

Separations 13, 212 118.0%TARGET 11,200

Bed Days
Hospital

Occupancy

31,182 107.4%TARGET 29,044

Emergency
Attendances 20,051 99.8%TARGET 20,100

88.5% 99.4%TARGET 89.0%

Number of
Operations 3,209 95.8%

0

2012 2011

2011/2012 Revenue Indicators
(Average Collection Days)

0 10 30 50 70 90 110 130 150

Private Inpatient
76.84

55.07

WorkCover
Inpatient 79.96

86.08

Nursing Home
11.53

9.72

Hostel
11.31

8.00

TARGET 3,350

Government Grants ($’000)

2011

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

$54,760

2010 $53,265

2009 $49,952

2008 $45,959

2012 $58,422
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5 Year Financial Comparison

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Total Revenue 79,680 78,217 73,475 68,941 66,713
Total Expenditure 84,314 79,607 76,587 68,683 64,014

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) (4,634) (1,390) (3,112) 258 2,699

Retained Surplus 1,388 6,022 7,412 10,524 10,266

Total Assets 82,944 85,081 85,043 87,803 62,939
Total Liabilities 21,568 19,710 18,282 17,930 18,496

Net Assets 61,376 65,371 66,761 69,873 44,443

Total Equity 61,376 65,371 66,761 69,873 44,443

The Group recorded a deficit of $4,634,000 against a budgeted deficit of $4,385,000

Expenditure by Category 2011/12 ($ ’000)

Employee
Entitlements

0 5 10 15 20 25

$’000

30 35 40 45 50 55

Fee for Service
Medical Officers

$5,221

Administrative
Expenses

$4,009

Supplies and
Consumables

$8,270

Depreciation and
Amortisation

$5,753

Repairs and
Maintenance

$707

Fuel, Light,
Power and Water

$1,116

Patient Transport $993

$54,163

TOTAL $84,314

Separations by Top 10 Major Diagnostic Category 2011/12

Renal Dialysis 2423

Neonatal 759

Vaginal Delivery 407

Chemotherapy 703

Red Blood Cell
Disorders

213

Chest Pain 278

Antenatal and
other Obstetric

admission
226

Other Skin,
Subcutaneous

Tissue & Breast
Procedures

151

Oesophagitis
and

Gastroenteritis
170

Hernia
Procedures

164

5 Year WIES Comparison (Target A)

2010/11

60 62 64 66 68
WIES x100

FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
YE

A
R

70 72 74 76 78

ACTUAL 7085

TARGET 6698

2009/10
ACTUAL 7045

TARGET 6595

2008/09
ACTUAL 7128

TARGET 6695

2007/08
ACTUAL 7196

TARGET 6461

2011/12
ACTUAL 7572

TARGET 6735

EXCESS
2011/12: 247 2008/09: -70
2010/11: -206 2007/08: 204
2009/10: -199

0
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Warragul Linen Service Income $’000

Comment: Warragul Linen Service income remained consistent
to last year.

2011

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

$12,150

2010 $12,237

2009 $11,373

2008 $10,985

2012 $12,312

Total EFT

Comment: WGHG has 1,217 staff in total that make up 661.90 full time
positions (EFT).

2011

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

649.4

2010 644.6

2009 620.9

2008 595.7

2012 661.9

Inpatients Treated

Comment: The number of inpatients treated rose by 2,148 a significant
increase compared to previous years.

2011

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

11,064

2010 11,282

2009 10,910

2008 10,923

2012 13,212

Number on the Waiting List

Comment: Despite the efforts of our Elective Surgery Access
Coordinator, operating theatre team and surgeons, West
Gippsland Healthcare Group has not been able to reduce
the elective surgery waiting list to 478, the target set by DH.

2011
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598

2010 514

2009 638

2008 642

2012 836

The Group keeps statistics on a wide-ranging basis covering
many fields of operation across all West Gippsland Healthcare
sites. These help us in many ways as they are evidence of what
we are doing. They help us to:
� see trends so that we can tailor our programs to the needs

of our community
� determine the rate at which services are growing/decreasing
� manage our finances so that we can effectively and

accurately stay within budget
� report accurately to the DH about the activity of the Group
� decide the best way to run our operations

Nursing Services

Hotel and Allied Services

Administration and Clerical

Medical Support Services

Hospital Medical Officers

Medical

Ancillary Support (Allied Health)

Total

LABOUR CATEGORY

498 96.1 20 3.9 518 274.29 264.6

125 82.2 27 17.8 152 96.43 97.8

86 88.7 11 11.3 97 63.26 62.0

22 84.6 4 15.4 26 11.91 11.7

21 67.7 10 32.3 31 23.90 26.1

50 43.5 65 56.5 115 6.50 3.5

67 95.7 3 4.3 70 39.75 40.2

Warragul Linen Service 144 69.0 64 31.0 208 145.9 143.6

1,013 83.2 204 16.8 1,217 661.9 649.4

TOTAL NUMBER OF STAFF EMPLOYED EQUIVALENT FULL TIME STAFF
FEMALE % MALE % TOTAL 2012 2011

Employment Statistics
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Under 31-60 61-90 Over Total Total
30 days days days 90 days 2012 2011

Private Inpatient Fees 6,971 - - - 6,971 1,312

Ineligible 2,891 - - 2,546 5,437 2,798

Workcover 6,590 122 - 7,605 14,317 6,577

Total Inpatient Fees 16,452 122 - 10,151 26,725 10,687

Nursing Home 1,540 7,260 3,493 4,974 17,267 30,201

Hostel 6,250 6,794 1,161 2,117 16,322 19,905

24,242 14,175 4,654 17,241 60,313 60,792

Non-Admitted Patients Total
Emergency Department presentations 20,051

Outpatient Services - occasions of service 8,897

Total occasions of service 28,948

Separations
Same Day 6,665 0 6,665
Multi Day 6,347 200 6,547

Total Separations 13,012 200 13,212

Emergency 4,528 N/A 4,528
Elective 6,204 N/A 6,204
Other including Maternity 2,280 200 2,480

Total Separations 13,012 200 13,212

Total WIES 7,572

Total Bed Days 28,813 2,369 31,182

Admitted Patients Acute Sub-Acute Total

Debtors outstanding as at 30 June 2012

Access

Access
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Review of Operations: Quality Report
WGHG is committed to delivering quality care in a safe
environment that minimises the risk of harm to patients,
clients, residents and visitors. 

Quality, safety and risk management programs and
systems are in place and constantly reviewed to ensure
patient safety and to identify ways to improve the services
we provide.

Clinical Risk Management
Clinical governance is an accountability framework to
ensure the clinical risk management systems and
processes are in place to continually improve the safety
and quality of care. 

WGHG’s program of clinical risk management and
governance is based on the Department of Health’s
Clinical Governance Guidelines and involves:
� ensuring an effective and safe workforce
� monitoring the effectiveness of care
� managing clinical risks
� involving consumers in their own care.

Elements of the program include:
� a commitment by the Board and executive to a “safety

first” environment
� ensuring staff have the correct qualifications, registrations,

experience and credentials to undertake the tasks they
are employed to do

� departments are staffed by people with the appropriate
mix of skills and experience

� staff are provided with educational support including
supervision of junior staff and ongoing education and
testing of mandatory competencies to keep staff up to
date with best practice

� the organisation participating in projects to implement
best practice

� staff being involved in planning and redesigning systems
and process that improve the way we do things

� patients and families being involved in their care
� monitoring large numbers of audits and clinical indicators

that measure our clinical performance
� encouraging staff to report clinical risks and incidents,

to learn from them and prevent reoccurrences
� investigating incidents, identifying underlying causes

and implementing strategies to reduce risks
� where possible, utilise technology to minimise errors
� ensuring programs are in place that are constantly

revised to manage known clinical risks (such as Infection
Control risks)

� regular reviews of policies, procedures, guidelines and
protocols to ensure they reflect current best practice

� a range of clinical committees that provide expertise
and direction to improve care delivery 

� regular meetings held by the Clinical Risk and
Evaluation (CARE) Committee to discuss clinical
incidents, complaints and issues. Risks identified are then
directed to the most appropriate committee or persons 

for action. Strategies aimed at risk prevention are
identified, implemented and reported to the monthly
Clinical Quality Committee.

WGHG promote a healthy culture of reporting incidents
or issues so lessons can be learned. It is difficult to ensure
every incident is reported so we actively encourage and
support reporting through ongoing education and
feedback to managers.

Where a serious incident occurs, the CARE committee
recommends a higher level of investigation be carried
out, such as an in-depth review or root cause analysis.
During these processes every detail of the incident and
events leading up to the incident are analyzed to identify
causes. The team then develops recommendations to
prevent similar incidents occurring in the future. 

The table below shows the number of documented
clinical incidents reported, some of the most common
types of clinical incidents and there prevalence over time.

2006-07:
1730 Falls 42% Medication and IV related 15%

2007-08:
1502 Falls 45% Medication and IV related 13 %

2008-09: 
1378 Falls 37% Medication and IV related 22%

2009/10:
1570 Falls 27 % Medication and IV related 13%

2010/11:
1602 Falls 26 % Medication and IV related 12%

2011/12:
1470 Falls 30% Medication and IV related 15%

Falls Prevention
The Falls Prevention program is in its sixth year of operation.
The program aims to prevent falls and minimise the injuries
caused to hospital patients, aged care residents and clients
in community based settings. The program is based on the
best practice model developed by the Victorian Quality
Council. 
The basic program has five steps:
� risk screening
� risk assessment
� care plan to reduce risks 
� process to manage a fall if it occurs 
� process to reassess and modify care plans 

The program is ongoing and regular evaluations and audits
monitor staff compliance to screening and assessment
steps. Preventative strategies remain the major focus,
along with building up personal physical strength. 

Research had shown that without exercise people resting
in a hospital bed can within days lose significant muscle
strength, making them more susceptible to falling. We have
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2008 2007200920112012 2010

Number of Falls West Gippsland Hospital

Falls with no
adverse outcome

While the total number of falls reported this year has slightly increased,
the numbers causing minor and major harm have reduced.
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Falls with
minor outcome

31

27

28

22

23

17

Falls with
major outcome

5

5

2

2

3

Total falls

122

98

142

127

159

200

established Allied Health Assistance to staff members to
provide functional maintenance programs in the Medical
and Surgical Wards.

A prevention program is available for the care of people
after discharge and is a staged model of care aimed at
independence. The Community Services Physiotherapists
provide a 14 week ‘Make a Move’ program in a community
based setting for patients requiring additional assistance.
People are then encouraged to continue to exercise
independently.

Additional programs available for referral include:
� strength and balance
� community rehabilitation
� strength and conditioning

Additional fall prevention and injury minimisation strategies
include: 
� lowering beds so they are closer to the floor
� where possible, place patient beds closer to the nurses

desk for closer observation
� regularly checking on a patient’s needs
� use of alarms to alert staff when patients are getting out

of bed without assistance
� use of yellow arm bands to alert staff of someone at high

risk of falling
� applying hip protectors
� ensuring items are close at hand and within easy reach 
� reviewing medications
� referrals occur to dietitians, podiatrists and eye specialists

2008 2007200920112012 2010

Number of Falls Residential Aged Care (RAC)

Falls with no
adverse outcome

The number of falls in Aged Care resulting in minor and major harm
have slightly reduced in 2011-12.
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Total falls
267

248

247

378
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519

� encouraging exercise
� auditing staff skills in patient screening and assessment 
� reporting falls to capture occurrences and contributing

factors for analysis and understanding.

Medication Management
The large array of medication, administered at different times
by a variety of different methods in a busy setting can make
medication management a high risk area. We monitor
numerous aspects of medication management including:
� regular reviews of policies, procedures and protocols that

guide and assist our staff 
� education programs are conducted at orientation and at

regular intervals to keep our staff informed and up to date
� competency of nursing staff to correctly calculate

medication doses
� numerous audits conducted to ensure staff comply with

policies
� staff are actively encouraged to report and discuss

medication errors
� errors are analysed to identify why they occur and

opportunities implemented to improve
� medication management processes are checked against

national standards to ensure compliance.

Our bi-weekly INSPIRED meetings have proven to be effective
in reducing errors. INSPIRED meetings are attended by Nurses,
Junior staff, Doctors, Pharmacy staff and Physicians and
provide a learning environment in the review of errors and
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issues in relation to medication management. Summaries of
discussions are circulated amongst staff via our INSPIRED
newsletter and include:
� how to use dosage guidelines 
� correct documentation when prescribing
� recording allergies correctly.

This year the Department of Health provided equipment funds
to replace the intravenous pumps across the hospital. These
pumps can be programmed with a computerized ‘drug library’
that allows for built in safety parameters to provide for the safe
delivery of a range of intravenous medication. The introduction
of these pumps is planned for 2012-13. Similarly, a submission
and recommendation to introduce an Electronic Prescribing
System in 2012-13 will strengthen the medication management
program for WGHG.

Infection Control
A clean environment, clean equipment and best clinical
practice are the corner stone of infection control and the
importance of each one should not be underestimated.
A clean hospital is important to reduce the risk of people
developing infections. Some ‘superbugs’ that are difficult to
treat, live in dust or on equipment and surfaces and are easily
spread to people by hand and equipment.

Our Infection Control team ensures work surfaces, work
environments and new equipment are easy to clean and
maintain. WGHG has a regular program of monthly audits.
External cleaning audits are also conducted by Department
approved auditors. 

The Rural Infection Control Group (RICPAC) audit tool
highlighted a need for WGHG to standardise a consistent
cleaning program for drapes and isolation rooms. Several
options where considered with the most efficient less labour
intensive process adopted, along with the purchase of
specialised steam cleaning equipment. The results have
been outstanding and a regular program is in place. 

Hand Hygiene
Millions of normally harmless micro-organisms live on hands.
When people are sick or have had surgery these ‘bugs’ can
take the opportunity to multiply and cause infection.

It has long been known that clean hands are the key to
preventing this spread and reducing infections.

Medication incidents West Gippsland Hospital

A review of medication incident reporting raised staff awareness of the
importance of reporting incidents so lessons and ways to improve can
be implemented.

2011
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121

2012 127

2010 135

2009 191

Medication incidents Residential Aged Care

The number of medication incidents reported in aged care increased
this year. 

2011
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2012 76
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SCORE SET BY DH: 85%

Cleaning Standard Score

2011
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94.20%MAY

2010 FEBRUARY 92.40%

2010 97.10%

2006 92.40%

2009 95.20%

2008 95.00%

2012 95.00%

2007 95.50%

WGHG promote hand hygiene by:
� actively talking about hand hygiene
� running regular awareness campaigns
� supplementing hand washing with special alcohol based

hand rub solutions
� educating our staff in using the international ‘five moments

for hand hygiene’
� regularly checking staff compliance by completing ongoing

observational audits. 

Hand Hygiene Compliance Audit One 2012

Surgical
Ward

0 20 40 60 70 80 100

83%

Medical
Ward 78%

Hospital
Compliance 80.5%

State
Compliance 74%

SCORE SET BY DH: 70%

Overall results show how the Wards are improving performance in hand
hygiene audits. The target is 70%. Results of each audit are provided to
staff along with improvement strategies.

JUNE
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Emergency Department attendances by year

2011

0 12,000 14,000 16,000 18,000 20,000

19,098

2010 17,478

2009 17,058

2008 16,499

2012 20,051

Number of patients with length of stay in ED over 24 hours

2010
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76

2009 122

2008 149

2012 106

2011 93

Elective surgery

Count of people waiting to be operated
Urgency on as at 30 June 2012

Category 1 28

Category 2 408

Category 3 400

TOTAL 836

Elective Surgery
Managing the increased demand for elective surgery within
funding constraints continued to present challenges. The
number of elective surgery cases completed from the waiting
list was 2,217. The number of people added to the wait list was
2,667 and as a result, our elective surgery waiting list grew
from 610 last year to 836 this year. 

100% of Category 1 patients (the most urgent) were operated
on within 30 days. 

Accreditation update
We have continued to achieve robust quality and safety
systems resulting in full accreditation status.

Accreditation processes are in place to ensure that healthcare
organisations meet industry standards and continually improve
their systems and processes. WGHG undergoes several
mandatory accreditation processes which are conducted
at regular intervals from one to two years depending on the
type of survey.

Total operations performed (Elective and Emergency)

2011
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3,327

2010 3,321

2008 3,130

2012 3,209

2009 3,207

Accessing our Health Service
The Emergency Department
Demands for our services continue to increase, with a
significant number of people presenting for care through the
Emergency Department (ED). The number of people increased
by 5% with 953 more presentations. This increase within the
confines of the ED environment is one of the causative factors
that contributed to not meeting waiting time targets set by the
DH. 

This year 106 patients extended their length of stay for more
than 24 hours in ED. This was not only undesirable for patients
but also reduced the capacity of the ED to see new patients
and further compounded the issue and demand on inpatient
beds. 

There were times when the ED became critically overloaded
and during these times, a two tiered response plan was
initiated. The hospital did not go on ambulance by-pass, yet
at times notified the ambulance service so that it could make
appropriate choices regarding which hospital to take patients
to, particularly those from outside the Baw Baw Shire. Other
strategies included bringing in additional medical and nursing
staff, reviewing the elective surgical operating list and reviewing
patients who were scheduled for discharge within 24 hours.
During this response the department is monitored half hourly
until the situation improves. Response was triggered 20 times
during the year, (the same as last year) and 18 times in
2009/10.
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This year:
� The Hospital and Community Services underwent a full

accreditation survey by the Australian Council on Healthcare
Standards (ACHS) and were accredited under the revised
EQuIP 5 requirements. Highlights included being awarded
the highest Outstanding Achievement rating for quality
improvement processes

� Andrews House and Cooinda Lodge aged care services
completed full accreditation survey by the Aged Care
Standards Agency

� ACHS also reviewed WGHG against the new National
Standards. This review provided a gap analysis to assist
with planning to meet the new National Standards for 2013. 

� WGHG was re-accredited under the Baby Friendly Hospital
Initiative

Current accreditation ratings include:
� full Aged Care accreditation rating with full compliance

to all 44 criteria for Andrews House and Cooinda Lodge 
� full accreditation for our hospital and community services

under EQuIP 5
� 20/20 accreditation score for our Home and Community

Care ( HACC) services 
� full accreditation with International Standards Organisation

ISO 9001:2008 for Warragul Linen Service
� community services registration under the Children,

Youth and Families Act, 2005
� food safety certification.

A separate, more comprehensive Quality of Care report is available on request.

Please telephone the Customer Services Manager/Quality Coordinator on 03 5623 0835
or visit www.wghg.com.au

Dan Weeks
Accountable Officer

Warragul
24 August 2012

Risk Management: Certification

Attestation on Compliance with Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard

I, Dan Weeks, certify that the West Gippsland Health Group has risk management processes in place consistent with the
Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard and an internal control system is in place that enables the executives
to understand, manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures. The audit committee verifies this assurance and that the
risk profile of the West Gippsland Health Group has been critically reviewed within the last 12 months.
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Profile
West Gippsland Hospital (WGH) based in Warragul, provides Medical,
Surgical, Gynaecology, Obstetric, Sub-Acute, Oncology, Haemodialysis,
Paediatric, Anaesthetric, Emergency and High Dependency services,
with a full range of Allied Health services. 

Objectives
1. Launch the Productive Ward, Releasing Time to Care program across

all wards and units
2. Provide optimal supportive care to all patients with a new diagnosis

of cancer through the Gippsland Regional Integrated Cancer Service
(GRICS) Project

3. Complete implementation review of low level 2 nursery in midwifery
unit

4. Continue to embed the change management model adopted through
the redesigning care project 

5. Undertake a gap analysis to identify needs to transition from a level
one palliative care program to a level two 

6. Review model of care and patient flow processes within the
Emergency Department 

7. Introduce an Allied Health Assistant to the Surgical Ward 

Outcomes
1. Commenced the Improving Care of Older Person (ICOP) project

in January 2012 (due for completion by December 2012)
2. Phase one of the Productive Ward, Releasing Time to Care project

underway 
3. Gippsland Regional Integrated Cancer Service (GRICS) Project

commenced in January 2012 (due for completion in December 2012).
Supportive Care Model adopted in two main cancer streams 

4. Low level 2 nursery review and recommendations adopted
and staff recruitment and training provided

5. Final report on ‘Losing Wait - Improving Elective Surgery Flow’
submitted showing positive results 

6. NSAP project and gap analysis outcomes developed to progress
to a level two palliative care program 

7. Building project for Emergency Department underway, with model
of care and medical review to be completed by December 2012

8. Allied Health Assistant appointed to Surgical ward in August 2011
and program in place 

Future Directions
� Actively engage consumers in program development and feedback

in relation to services
� Completion of the Emergency Department redevelopment
� Review model of care and patient flow processes across

organisation and utilise data on activity
� Continue projects Releasing Time to care and Productive Ward;

demonstrate a 6% improvement in direct patient care times and
undertake further redesigning care projects

� Co-locate Elective Surgery Access Coordinator with Pre Admission
Clinic 

� Implement Electronic Prescribing System and change over to new
Intravenous Infusion Pumps 

� Establish a strengthened process for activity of compliance to policy
and procedure

� Manage demand and establish stronger ‘just in time’ data and KPI’s
� Continue with Deteriorating Patient Project Research 
� Review processes of complaints and compliments and strengthen

KPI’s 

Right, proud mum Sarah Irving with twins Fred and Gus
born in May 2012. 

Diabetes
A HbAIC point of care blood glucose machine that analyses
a finger prick blood sample, was purchased from funds
raised by the Drouin Lions Club. The machine provides
a standard marker for blood glucose control, especially
in the management of children. The machine is located at
the hospital pathology laboratory allowing for tests to occur
at any time. Children attending the paediatric clinic receive
a quick turnaround time for results to be available to their
healthcare providers. 

This year, there were 944 client contacts (as at April 2012)
which covered 547 clients. Of these clients, 163 were
inpatients and 384 were outpatients. There were 69 newly
diagnosed diabetics. 52 of these patients were women with
gestational diabetes, 3 were type one diabetics and 8 type
two and 6 were under the age of 18.

District Nursing Service, Hospital in the Home
and Palliative Care 
The District Nursing Service (DNS) provides home care
services to the community through a team of general
practitioners, healthcare professionals and community
service providers located throughout the Baw Baw Shire.

This year achievements included:
� our Mobile Wound Care research project won the VHA

Award for 2011, providing extended resource support
� two staff members were awarded the Nina Buscombe

Award, providing funding to attend the Motor Neurone
Disease conference

� the establishment of the Baw Baw Coordinated Care
Meetings have enabled service providers including Baw
Baw Shire, WGHG, ACAS, Commonwealth Carers Respite
and Vision Australia, to share information and expertise on
a fortnightly basis to improve the outcomes for people
with complex care needs.

This year nurses spent 19,907 hours visiting patients,
2,706 more than last year. Palliative care contacts were
6,371 well above the DH benchmark of 4,481. Patients
receiving hospital care in the home increased slightly
this year with 2,182 bed days.

Review of Operations: Acute (Hospital) Services
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Average waiting time (hours) for patients from arrival
to day surgery to entry to theatre: July 2011- June 2012
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INTRODUCTION OF
STAGGERED
ADMISSION

The Redesign initiative introduced in September to stagger patient
admissions for elective surgery, reduced wait time from 3 hours to
2 hours for patients pre theatre.

work smarter not harder and grow our continuous
improvement culture.

Emergency Department 
The Emergency Department presentations have again
increased with the end of year total reaching 20,015
which was a 5% rise on last year. The redevelopment of the
Emergency Department commenced and is expected to be
completed early 2013. The addition of 8 extra cubicles will
take the Emergency Department to 16 cubicles. As part of
the redevelopment models of care and patient flow,
processes will be reviewed to ensure that patients receive the
optimal care in the most appropriate and efficient time frame.

Gippsland Regional Integrated Cancer Service (GRICS) 
The Australian Government is funding projects such as the
Gippsland Regional Integrated Cancer Services (GRICS) to
meet targets set by the Victorian Cancer Action Plan (VCAP).
VCAP’s vision is by 2012 there is evidence of supportive care
education being delivered to health practitioners and that 50%
of newly diagnosed cancer patients will have supportive care
screening and appropriate referrals. Supportive care is
necessary because current research suggests that early
identification and referral of patients can result in better
outcomes, enhanced quality of care and patient satisfaction. 

Haemodialysis 
The Haemodialysis Unit operates six days per week as a
satellite Unit of the Monash Medical Centre with seven patients
receiving treatment at any one time. 2518 treatments took place
this year, an increase of 32% on the previous year. 

Midwifery and Obstetrics 
The Midwifery Unit welcomed 881births which was an
increase of 7% over the previous year. WGHG welcomed
Dr David Simon back to the organisation in March 2012. 

A skills needs gap analysis was undertaken to identify
education needs of midwifery staff for implementation
of a level 2 nursery. 

Operating Theatre & Day Surgery Unit 
The focus for the Operating Theatre (OT) was to sustain
the improvements that were made as a result of the
Redesigning Care project “Losing Wait” in the previous year,
and to continue to develop ways that improved the journey

Transition Care Program
Expansion of the Transition Care Program occurred this year,
with the funding of an extra bed at Neerim District Health
Service and an extra home based bed. This brought the
total number of beds for this program to seven.

Redesigning Care
Redesign initiatives progressed with a focus on the continued
building of Redesign capability and use of LEAN methodology
to direct improvements and encourage innovative ideas.

The DH funded surgical project tilted ‘Losing Wait’ has
been sustained and keeps building on the initiatives from
last year, increasing the quality and efficiency of the day
surgery service.

‘Releasing Time to Care’ was launched earlier this year,
a modular improvement series that was rolled out to
eight departments across acute and aged care services.
In conjunction with the National Health Service (NHS) Institute
for Innovation and Improvement, a two day work shop was
attended by 53 staff. The Direct Care Time programs focus
is to improve the valuable time spent with patients and
residents. By reviewing current systems and processes,
we can increase the time spent at the bedside with patients.

Direct Care Time has four key areas:
� safety and reliability of care
� patient experience
� staff wellbeing
� efficiency of service

Redesign continues to facilitate staff in all areas to challenge
and creatively think about the way we provide care to ensure
it’s the best for our patients and our community. We aim to 
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of the elective surgery patient. A key change implemented was
the relationship between the Day Surgery Ward and the OT
being linked, which resulted in a greater continuity of care for
patients and staff. 

A five year sponsorship arrangement with the Drouin & District
Community Bank provided the opportunity for the OT to lease
the latest Laparoscopic Equipment. This equipment will be
used by all types of surgical specialties. The equipment is the
latest technology allowing for clearer pictures (the transition
from analogue to digital)

This year, the total number of operations performed decreased
by 124. A decrease of 73 cases in the ENT specialty was a
result of our ENT surgeon leaving the organisation. A
recruitment strategy was implemented and a new ENT
surgeon commenced practicing in July 2012.

Surgical Ward and Paediatrics
An Allied Health Assistant was appointed to the Surgical Ward
and provided therapy to a total of 392 occupational therapy
and physiotherapy patients throughout the year. Therapy was
provided individually, and also in a group setting. Patients
benefited from receiving extra therapy beyond that supplied
by the Allied Health professionals. This additional therapy
facilitated a timely discharge from hospital to home, particularly
for those identified as at risk of referral to inpatient rehabilitation.
The Allied Health Assistant has been able to provide input into
the multidisciplinary team during the Geriatric Evaluation &
Management program (GEM) ward rounds to assist with
discharge planning.

Below, twins Fred and Gus Irving added to a record breaking year
of births at the hospital. 

Breast Care
The breast care service funded by the McGrath Foundation
resulted in 549 occasions of service being offered. Of those
seen by the service, 45 were newly referred women.

In August 2012, the Baw Baw Shire Mayoral Charity Gala will
raise funds to increase the breast cancer care nurses hours
(currently 24 hours per fortnight) to offer further assistance
and expanding on programs for breast cancer patients. 

Improving Care of Older People (ICOP)
Improving Care of the Older Person project commenced
in January 2012. The philosophy of the project is to improve
the care of older people, using a person centred approach.
An environmental audit to identify improvements in consultation
with the Community Advisory Council was completed. A
Chronic Disease Management and Care Framework draft
was developed, along with Person Centred Care guidelines,
Delirium guideline and Preventing Functional Decline in the
older person. Staff have completed train the trainer’s education
for electronic referrals. 

Medical Staff
WGHG is fortunate to continue to attract skilled medical staff.
During the year we welcomed Dr David Simon - Obstetrician.

A full medical review of the Emergency Department medical
profile undertaken by external consultants was completed in
June 2012.

Dr Greg Shuttleworth has been with the Hospital for 14 years
as the Senior Medical Officer in the Emergency Department.
He has been a key  member and has significantly contributed
to the Emergency Department team. Greg resigned in June
2012.
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Profile
Andrews House and Cooinda Lodge provide care for a total of 110
residents. Andrews House is located in Trafalgar and is a 50 bed dual
care home offering both high level and low level care and dementia
secure care. Andrews House also offers Transitional Care for one person
in need of short term, low level therapy to assist them to return home
following hospitalisation or while finalising long term care arrangements.
Cooinda Lodge is co-located with the West Gippsland hospital in
Warragul and offers care for 60 residents with high level care needs. 
The aim of Aged Care Services is to provide ageing in place with the
highest quality of care, living standards and the maximum enjoyment
in the pursuits of resident’s choice. This care is consistent with the
standards outlined by the Aged Care Standards and Accreditation
Agency. Andrews House has consistently achieved full accreditation.
A dedicated team comprising Registered Nurses, Enrolled Nurses,
Personal Care Workers, Allied Health, Food Services, Environmental
Services and Administration continue to be committed to ensuring a
quality service that is flexible to meet the changing needs of residents. 

Objectives
1. Implement an Aged Care specific software program that improves

the quality of documentation, analysis and reporting
2. Conduct a feasibility study on refurbishment of the Cooinda Lodge

Veranda area
3. Strengthen community ties through the promotion of support groups

and volunteers in both facilities
4. Conduct a feasibility study on the construction of an Activity Garden

at Andrews House.

Outcomes
1. Successful implementation across aged care of a new software

program, MANAD, improving quality of documentation, analysis
and reporting

2. Successful application to the Department of Health for funding to
refurbish the Cooinda Lodge Veranda area. The funding enabled
the veranda to be enclosed which will increase comfort of residents
and increase the usage of the area throughout the year

3. Volunteer involvement at Andrews House has increased by 25%
and Cooinda Lodge has secured a volunteer art therapist ensuring
a sustainable art program is available

4. Successful application to the Department of Health for funding under
the Healthy Ageing Demonstration project to construct an Activity
Garden at Andrews House

Review of Operations: Aged Care Services
Future Directions
� Complete construction of the Activity Garden for residents of Andrews

House 
� Landscape the Cooinda Lodge garden following completion of building

works for the Emergency Department and implement a grounds
maintenance program at both Cooinda Lodge and Andrews House

� Purchase and utilise the Andrews House commuter bus donated
by Trafalgar Opportunity Shop

� Develop an aged care marketing strategy 
� Improve efficiency and accuracy of medication administration and

conduct a feasibility study to implement an electronic medication
administration system.

Lifestyle Programs
Andrews House and Cooinda Lodge offer diverse lifestyle
programs developed to reflect the individual needs and
desires of each resident.

Additional volunteer assistance at Andrews House
has expanded the activities offered to residents resulting
in increased participation levels. Volunteers assisted
residents with weekly programs such as footy tipping,
poems and stories for newsletters, shopping trolleys to
purchase items from and carpet bowls. Andrews House
benefited from the generosity of the Trafalgar community
with the donation of two display cabinets used to house
a variety of interesting items in reception.

Cooinda Lodge support from the Warragul Greyhound
Racing Club through the allocation of dog nominated
to race brought great pleasure to our residents. This
year “Lady Grey” performed well, even sneaking out a win.
Our residents are looking forward to another
winning “dish-licker” in 2012. 

Cooinda Lodge continues to utilise ‘Pet Therapy’, which
included regular dog visits. A highlight for the residents
this year was the visit of a Shetland pony brought into
the home to tour the facility and meet the residents.

Below, staff member Meagan Jones introduces her miniature
pony to Cooinda resident Carmel Spiteri.
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Continuous Improvement
Andrews House and Cooinda Lodge are both fully accredited
with the Aged Care Standards and Accreditation Agency.
Andrews House and Cooinda Lodge successfully participated
in a full site audit in September 2011 and additional
unannounced assessment contact visits. Both sites have
met accreditation standards which included personal care
of residents relating to sensory loss and specialised nursing
care, human resource management, medication management
and leisure interests and activities. 

A review of care of residents at Andrews House was
undertaken in line with principles around releasing time care.
The process of allocating staff to residents was revised with
additional time made available for staff to spend one on one
time with residents. Timely administration of medication and
an increased opportunity to conduct resident assessments
by the Registered Nurse occurred.

Through a Department of Health funding grant, the Cooinda
Lodge veranda area was refurbished and is now fully enclosed.
Additionally, a series of bi-fold windows were also installed
allowing residents to relax with family and friends. The Lifestyle
Coordinators also utilised the area to run programs. 

The successful implementation of MANAD, a newly
implemented software program, has enabled more detailed
assessment of residents and has enhanced the review of
service provision. MANAD provides an opportunity to improve
data collection, analysis and reporting and the program has
been positively embraced by aged care staff.

Andrews House participated in the Department of Health
“Healthy Ageing Demonstration Project”. Funding will enable
the construction of an Activity Garden, creating an external
environment that promotes physical activity, social connection
and emotional wellbeing for residents. Construction is planned
for July 2012.

Staff Education
An aged care educator coordinates the effective delivery
of ongoing education to staff working in aged care facilities. 

Aged care staff attended a wide variety of educational topics
in addition to undertaking mandatory competencies in Smart
Lift, Medication Administration, Fire and Evacuation training,
Basic Life support Compulsory Reporting, Redesign, Better
Oral Health, Continence Management, Palliative care, Pain
Management and Heat-wave in the Elderly.

Aged care staff continue to embrace tertiary studies. Courses
undertaken by staff included the Certificate IV Allied Health
Assistant, Diploma of Nursing, Certificate IV Frontline
Management and Bachelor of Nursing. 

A number of our food service staff have completed the
Food Handling/Food Safety Supervisors course and
Environmental service staff have commenced Certificate II
Health Cleaning.

Below, John O’Grady, Merv Pannell, Pam Ingram (Activities
Coordinator), Peg Gould, Carol Stapenell (Activities Assistant),
Joan Simkunas and Trainer D. Pulis with Cooinda’s winning
Greyhound “Lady Grey”.
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Profile
Community Health Services operate throughout the Shire at Gladstone
Street in Warragul, Baw Baw Health and Community Care Centre in
Drouin, Rawson Community Health Centre in Rawson and the Community
Health Centre in Trafalgar. Community Health comprises 50 staff in
various disciplines, providing a wide range of primary care services
delivered in the community setting as well as in client homes. We
acknowledge the valued partnership with the Baw Baw Shire for its
financial support of Family Counselling, Youth Counselling, Rawson
Community Health Centre and The Clinic. 

Objectives
1. Establish Wagner Model of Chronic Disease management into WGHG
2. Support Closing the Gap initiative 
3. Formalise Treatment Plans for Counselling services
4. Measure time to treatment across CDAMS, Continence, Counselling

and RAHS 
5. Establish and complete the Bush Fire Community Support service 
6. Review operations at Rawson Community Health Services

Outcomes
1. Continue work with the Chronic Disease committee to implement

the Wagner model into WGHG
2. Closing the Gap initiative continued with successful programs

completed in partnership with Ramahyuck including the Aboriginal
Holiday School program, and Dietician services provided from the
Ramahyuck site

3. Treatment plans for counselling services implemented
4. Access measure put in place
5. Bush Fire Community Support service completed
6. Service Review completed and work commencing to implement

recommendation

Future Directions
� Work with the Rawson Auxiliary to implement the new service

arrangements
� Implement new Data Collection system for Community Health

and Sub Acute services
� Continue to work on the Close the Gap initiatives including

the Aboriginal employment strategies for WGHG 

Club 88 members present a donation to the Emergency Relief
Program. Pictured L-R:  Judy Young, Noelle Amiet, Linda McCoy
(Director of Community Services), Lyn Ferguson, Di Coylo and
Wendy Brown.

Review of Operations: Community Health Services
Community Health
The Bush Fire Support service continued to finalise the
work under the Bush Fire Case Management service
(BFCM) and completed the program in August 2011. The
work saw clients receive support that enabled them to
finish work that had commenced under the BFCM service. 

A review at Rawson will see some changes to the hours
the service will be open in 2012 and the transfer of
Community activities will go back to the Rawson Auxiliary.
The partnership with Ramahyuck District Aboriginal
Corporation (RDAC), continued to grow with joint programs
being developed and run for the Aboriginal Community. We
successfully trialled the provision of a Dietician, who joined
our Diabetes Educator working from the RDAC. These will
continue to build the partnership and meet Close the Gap
targets.

Aboriginal Services
Sadly, our Aboriginal Liaison Officer Dot Mullett, passed
away after nearly 26 years of employment with the Group.
She was a valued employee who contributed enormously
to the development of programs and services for the local
indigenous community. During her tenure, she supported
the Closing the Gap Advisory Committee for WGHG; the
Advisory Board for the Ramahyuck District Aboriginal
Cooperative; a pilot program for Reconciliation Victoria,
and a Cultural Awareness orientation for staff at the hospital.

Adolescent Health Service
Joint work continued with Headspace, which is the youth
friendly mental health service auspiced by the Central West
Division of General Practice. The community health nurse
attended The Clinic at the Headspace site to deliver health
care to young people. This year 263 young people
attended The Clinic, and of these presentations:
� 50% had mental health issues
� 22% had medical issues including sexual reproductive

health issues
� 16% were drug and alcohol related
� 12% were family and relationship issue related.
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Rawson Community Health Centre
The Rawson Community Health Centre provides community
health services to residents of Rawson, Erica and Mountain
Rivers district. With the resignation of the Nurse Manager, a
service review was conducted this year and as a result several
changes to the service were identified. Implementation of the
review findings will occur in conjunction with the newly
reformed Rawson Auxiliary. This year, the team saw a total
of 2,723 clients, including 1,767 nurse client contacts, 873
doctor client contacts and 83 doctor sessions.  

Counselling
The Counselling Service consists of Family Therapy,
Youth, General and Women and Children’s Family Violence
specialist services. The team have continued to invest time in
developing theoretical skills and knowledge based on trauma
and attachment models to stay up to date with contemporary
research. The team work with children, youth and families who
have experienced significant trauma in their lives due to family
violence, sexual assault and drug and alcohol addictions.
The demand for counselling services has increased over the
past year, requiring longer wait listing times. Individuals and
families are presenting with more complex issues requiring
longer term therapy and more sophisticated approaches.
Our statistics have also shown high numbers of individuals
presenting with anxiety and depression. Client feedback forms
have provided us with excellent qualitative data on how clients
are experiencing our services. On average, the counselling
team received 12-15 referrals per month. Four of the five
counsellors employed are part-time staff. This year, the team
provided services to 179 clients who attended 1,064
counselling consultations and 31 group work sessions.

Emergency Relief (ER)

Emergency Relief (ER) provides assistance to clients with
food, petrol vouchers and payment of utilities. The ER worker 

provided assistance to 760 clients this year, an increase of
192 clients from the previous year. A higher number of clientele
were people struggling with utility and petrol costs, as well as
costs associated with daily living. Clients presented with issues
ranging from family breakdown, to serious medical illnesses,
requiring multiple trips to Melbourne for specialist services.
The service was able to assist clients in extenuating
circumstances, with funding provided by a local church
group as well as Club 88 (a local charity fund raising group.)
Many families benefited from this additional assistance and
were able to move through the crisis period safely and be
referred to other appropriate services to assist in care
planning for their future.

Health Promotion
The Health Promotion Team has a Community Nurse,
Community Dietician and a Health Promotion Officer.
The team works with community organisations and schools
to change factors that impact on health outcomes. 

Health Promotion assists people to improve their health
status by building skills, improving their knowledge and
accessing resources that will help them achieve this aim.
The Health Promotion Team works on programs and projects
which are currently within the Central West Gippsland Primary
Care Partnership Plan. One of the highlights of this year has
been the development and implementation of a highly
successful Aboriginal Family Holiday Program and
implementation of a ‘DrumBeat’ program for Drouin
Aboriginal Children. 

Implementation of these programs was conducted in
partnership with the Ramahyuck District Aboriginal Corporation
(RDAC), GippSport and Aboriginal Elders. This year the Health
Promotion Team has also successfully implemented Heart
Foundation Walking Groups across the Shire. Currently
four groups regularly walk in Rawson, Yarragon, Drouin
and Warragul and we have plans to implement more
groups to keep up with demand.

Photo taken during the 2011 Aboriginal School Holiday Program outing.
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Profile
Corporate Services encompasses the non-clinical support areas that
provide support to the Group’s (acute) hospital, residential aged care,
community and primary care services and business units. 

Objectives
1. Reduce work cover claim costs and premiums in line with the industry

average by 2015
2. Complete the water ring main upgrade to the hospital site
3. Install emergency generator for Andrew’s House
4. Review Consulting Suites reception services and upgrade facilities

to improve facilities for VMOs and patients

Outcomes
1. Significant reduction in work cover claim costs achieved for 2011-12,

led by early intervention programs, proactive return to work processes
and consulting services from P2 Group

2. Main water ring upgrade completed during the year
3. Installation of emergency backup generator at Andrew’s House. Plus

successful installation and commissioning of a second hand generator
from the Royal Children’s Hospital. This has enabled extra load
capacity to service the hospital’s power requirements during a
mains failure 

4. Painting refresh of Consulting Suites and new children’s mural and
play area

Future Directions
� Establishment of a centralised Human Resources Department across

the Group
� Participate in the first tranche of the Energy Performance Contracting

(EPC) program under the Greener Government Buildings initiative 
� Implement Kronos electronic rostering system
� Review options to improve accommodation facilities for medical staff
� Support the Private in Public initiative
� Upgrade the existing PABX system 
� Prepare a business case for an electronic food menu system

(ChefMax)

Payroll
The Payroll/Personnel department ensures the timely
processing and payment of salaries and wages,
maintenance of personnel records and provides human
resource support to the non-nursing areas of the Group. 

Engineering
A multi-skilled team provides support to all WGHG sites.
Major projects undertaken this year include:
� the relocation of the District Nursing & Palliative Care

units to the Mary Sargeant Building to improve patient
care and service delivery

� completion of the clinical education suites building
project in the Mary Sargeant building and the adjoining
new physician consulting rooms

� the relocation of the supply department offices within
the co-located and vacated District Nursing offices

� relocation of medical lounges room within the supply
building to bring these services to a contemporary
standard.

Finance
The Finance Department is responsible for the accurate
and timely recording of financial transactions and
preparation of financial reporting including submission
of financial data and statistics to government funding
agencies. The department also manages salary packaging,
fixed assets and co-ordinates the annual budgeting
processes and audit services.

Installation of a second hand emergency generator will ensure the
hospital can cope with full load demands during a power outage.

Review of Operations: Corporate Services
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Supply
The Supply Department manages procurement, stock, and
distribution of mail, courier services, and coordination of
printing services, management of advertising and fleet vehicle
management to all sites. The department replaced its diesel
forklift with an electric forklift during the year, which has
improved OH&S conditions within the department.

Food Services

Food Services supplies food and beverage requirements
for inpatients, residential aged care and same-day patients.
The department also operates the Garden Room cafeteria,
supplies a meals-on-wheels service under contract and caters
for internal functions. As a registered Class 1 food premise,
the department is quality focused and reported no food
safety breaches during 2011/12. A total of 383,400 meals
were produced this year, 12,013 more than last year. 

Information Technology
The Information Technology (IT) department provides computer
hardware, software, technology support and education to
all areas across WGHG as well as maintaining the central
network system. Achievements this year include:
� implementation of the MANAD Aged Care System to

replace the existing Wecare system
� implementation of a new PC deployment method

through System Centre Configuration Manager (SCCM),
making it more efficient to re-image computers and
deploy them to users, leading to faster turnaround times

� the commencement of replacing printers under a ‘pay
per click’ model, rather than outright capital purchasing.

Consulting Suites
The Consulting Suites has 21 visiting medical specialists with
clinical credentials in general surgery, obstetrics/gynaecology,
dermatology, plastic and reconstructive surgery, nephrology,
neurology, orthopaedics, urology, breast surgery, ear, nose
and throat surgery and anaesthetics. With obstetrics and
gynaecology being at its peak, the purchase of the CO2
laser machine has been a great asset enhancing patient
care significantly. The Consulting Suites was also
refurbished with a children’s mural and play area.

Health Information
Health Information Services ensures the appropriate
management of patient records in accordance with DH
guidelines and privacy legislation, manages freedom of
information requests and health information reporting in
accordance with statutory requirements. This year’s focus
has been: develop a hospital wide Records Management
Policy; develop a register of all records across the organisation
and conduct audits on records storage and clinical
coding. External and internal clinical coding audits have
retrieved an additional 132 WIES for the period.

Environmental Services
Environmental Services aims to ensure cleaning standards
remain high for patients, visitors and staff in the acute,
residential care and community health settings. Responsibilities
include general cleaning, bed washing and bed making
following patient discharge from hospital as well as floor 

maintenance and waste management. The department
continues to achieve outstanding results in annual external
cleaning audits with 98% achieved this year for the hospital
audit, well above the Department of Health benchmark of 85%
for low risk areas, and 94% for high risk areas. 

Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
Promoting and securing the health, safety and welfare of all
staff, patients, clients, residents and visitors is the primary role
of the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Department.
The OHS committee meets bi-monthly to monitor OHS issues
in the workplace.
In July 2011, an external consultant P2 Group was engaged to
assist with injury management of high value claims. P2 Group’s
functional capacity assessment of injured workers has assisted
with early return to work strategies being more readily
accepted by local doctors. This has resulted in significantly
lower claims costs and thus a reduced work cover premium
for the 2011-2012 period.

Above Threshold Linen Service

Below Threshold Linen Service

Below Threshold Hospital

Above Threshold Hospital

Above Threshold Community Services

Below Threshold Andrews House

Above Threshold Andrews House

WorkCover claims

June 2011
17 claims

WorkCover claims have decreased by 47%, a pleasing result.
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Profile
Allied Health consists of Occupational Therapy (OT), Nutrition and Dietetics,
Physiotherapy and Speech Pathology. They provide a service to clients
during the hospital phase, in rehabilitation, in resident aged care settings
and with home follow-up. They work together as a multidisciplinary team
with other clinical and non-clinical staff to bring about the best outcome
for each client. 

Objectives
1. Implement an electronic inpatient meal management system
2. Develop a home assessment/home visit resource folder in OT
3. Implement Health Independence Guidelines for Community

Rehabilitation clients
4. Review outpatient prioritisation categories in Physiotherapy

Outcomes
1. Health Independence Guidelines for Rehabilitation clients achieved
2. Outpatient group administration processes for Community Rehabilitation

clients standardised and policies reviewed that reflect best practice
3. Developed a Nutrition Policy aimed at improving the management

and screening of malnutrition
4. Risk Assessment and Prediction Tool (RAPT) introduced for the

prediction of discharge post orthopaedic joint replacement 

Future Directions
� Establish activity based funding processes and data
� Investigate feasibility of a central point of access for external referral

to Allied Health Services
� Map outpatient, community, rehabilitation and Rural Allied Health

services and client pathways
� Develop a pre-admission screening tool for patients for orthopedic

surgery
� Partner with Regional Agencies in the Allied Health Assistant program
� Implement electronic patient satisfaction survey to demonstrate patient

care.

Occupational Therapy 
The Occupational Therapy (OT) department provides
services to hospital inpatients, aged care residences,
Pre-Admission Clinic and the Emergency Department.
Services to outpatients are provided through outpatient OT
and the Community Rehabilitation Centre. The introduction
of the Personal Activities of Daily Living (PADL) Assessment
form, has improved information regarding personal care
assessments and has improved OT services to inpatients
on the wards.

A protocol was developed this year to improve referrals
to the Baw Baw Shire HACC (Home and Community Care)
services and Post-Acute Care services, for patients being
discharged from hospital in conjunction with Post-Acute
Care, District Nursing Service and HACC.

The addition of the Allied Health Assistant position greatly
assisted the OT team in providing personal care training
for patients, as well as helping patients understand how
to use assistive aids effectively. 

Inpatient occasions of service were 2,882, which were
190 more than last year. Outpatient occasions of service
were 1,190 being 56 more than last year.

Physiotherapy
The Physiotherapy department provides services to hospital
inpatients, aged care residents, pre-admission clinic and the 

Emergency Department. Outpatient services are also
provided to individual clients and group programs including
hydrotherapy, cardiopulmonary rehabilitation and CRC
programs. Other services provided include the Transition and
Restorative Care programs and the Post-Acute Care Program.

This year, data was collected for the physiotherapy service
provision in the Emergency Department to identify service
needs. The Risk Assessment and Predication Tool (RAPT)
was implemented in the pre-admission clinic, resulting in
improved discharge planning for patients, in particular,
post orthopaedic joint replacement. Outpatient group
administration processes were standardised, along with
improved communication amongst staff of the programs
and policies of WGHG processes. The Pulmonary
Rehabilitation Program was reviewed, with best practice
principles applied resulting in changes to assessment
processes and the overall program.

2011/12 saw a marked increase in physiotherapy
department activity. Overall, the total number of occasions
of service increased by 34%, being the highest level of
service over the past five years. There was a 29% increase
in inpatient and outpatient activity. The overall average wait
time for individual outpatient services was reduced from
39 days in 2010/11 to 19 days in 2011/12.

Speech Pathology
The Speech Pathology department provides services to
patients with communication or swallowing difficulties,
including inpatients, adult and preschool paediatric
outpatients, Community Rehabilitation Centre clients and
residents of Baw Baw Shire aged care facilities. Paediatric
outpatients continued to be offered two initial assessment
appointments within the first several months to address
long waitlist times. Written case history questionnaires were
introduced this year for paediatric outpatients, which assisted
with the prioritisation of clients and enabled more time in
initial appointments for assessment. Whilst long waitlists
for outpatient services occurred, efforts to identify ways to
decrease waiting times whilst continuing to provide effective
services, remained a focus area. There were 598 outpatient
occasions of service. Inpatient occasions of service were
563, being 38 more than last year. 

Nutrition and Dietetics 
Dietetics provides nutritional services to hospital inpatients,
nursing home and special accommodation residents, as
well as outpatients. These services are provided in the form
of individualised care or in a patient group setting, to improve
nutrition outcomes for clients. This year saw the introduction
of a Nutrition Policy, which aims at improving the
management of malnutrition via the development of a
nutritional care framework. This included a validated
malnutrition screening tool being introduced across the
organisation, to help identify clients already malnourished
or at risk of malnutrition, which would otherwise go
undetected. 

Review of Operations: Allied Health
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Profile
The Warragul Linen Service (WLS) operates as a business unit of the
WGHG and is one of the largest linen services in Victoria, processing
on average 141,000 kilograms of linen each week. The Linen service
is co-located on the West Gippsland Hospital site and employs 210 staff.
Major customers include; Southern Health Service, Alfred Health, WGHG,
Peninsula Health Aged Care services, Maryvale Private Hospital, Latrobe
Valley Hotels, MECWA Aged Care and Regis Aged Care.

Objectives
1. Determine best options for building expansion and future capacity

requirements
2. Introduce an automated trolley management system
3. Review all aspects of transport
4. Review energy efficient plant and equipment
5. Enhance current production improvement systems

Outcomes
1. Future building works to be considered by the Board in 2013
2. Software for automated trolley management system developed
3. Transport operations reviewed
4. Replacement ironer and folder ordered
5. Competency assessment model and formal training improved

productivity

Future Directions
� Prepare Board report to determine future direction of WLS
� Further improve operations efficiencies
� Review stock control systems

A computerized trolley management system interfaced
with our LauMan software was developed to track all
trolleys leaving and returning to the WLS plant. Energy
management continued to remain a priority as well as the
management of future costs. Sustainable environmental
practices over recent years have reduced water usage,
steam usage, waste and managed vehicle fuel efficiencies.
Water reduction has been a result of smart low cost
systems resulting in usage being reduced by over 50%.
WLS received a Grant of $ 5,000 as a contribution
to installing a system to use rain water for toilet flushing.
This will reduce fresh water usage by 2 million litres
each year.

New energy efficient evaporative coolers were installed and
the Board approved the purchase of a gas heated oil ironer
which will substantially reduce power and steam costs.

Over recent years there have been substantial efficiencies
through the introduction of a range of staff improvement
systems including the development of team projects,
undertaking Cert III and Cert IV training courses, improved
knowledge through training and competency assessment
and the building positive attendance program. An
employment selection criteria process and staff
management program including the appointment of shift
supervisors, has led to much improved co-ordination and
control of the production areas. 

During the year there was a project undertaken to review
all aspects of transport. This resulted in;
� change of fuel supplier and a revised service scheduling

system
� in-house rostering and training of drivers for specific tasks 
� strategies to reduce overtime costs introduced
� data monitoring used to report vehicle activities.

Production Statistics
Over 21 million items were processed this year including
2.1million pillowcases, 2.2 million sheets, 3 million towels
and 3.2 million face washers.

Review of Operations: Warragul Linen Service

Financial Performance

Total revenue 1.0% Increase

Salary and wage expenses 6.2% Increase

Net Profit % expenses 7.9%

Operating profit $2.2m

Total net profit $925, 634

Total kgs of linen processed 140,453kg per week (ave)

Quality
WLS was subject to the annual surveillance audit by
SAI Global, to determine our level of compliance with our
quality certification ISO 9001. The Auditor was extremely
pleased with our level of compliance and is recommending
the continuation of our quality accreditation.

Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S)
WLS continues to promote OH&S in the workplace and
encourage staff to participate in safe work practices.
Early intervention in dealing with injuries or issues has
seen a significant drop in Work Cover claims.

Outlook
WLS has achieved good results for the year with efficiency
and operating profit above targets. There are, however,
concerns regarding the ability to sustain current production
levels within the current building. The use of more
automation will be the next step in the continuous
improvement of productivity.
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The Staff Development Unit facilitates activities to meet
the education, training and professional development
needs of staff.
The Mary Sargeant building redevelopment was completed
in 2011 in conjunction with the Monash University Rural
Clinical School to provide facilities for the upskilling of
medical and nursing staff.
The focus on delivering education sessions during ‘SMART
time’ in the afternoons has resulted in a significant increase
in the number of staff taking up education opportunities.
436 of the 576 in-service sessions for nursing staff
occurred during SMART time.
The number of on-line mandatory assessments completed
this year increased significantly with 2,863 competencies
successfully completed by 378 staff. 
Mandatory competencies include: 
� basic life support � hand hygiene � manual handling
� medication administration � falls � fire safety 
� neonatal resuscitation for midwives.
Continuing education/professional development programs
delivered this year include:
� neonatal emergency transport services 
� first line management � paediatric nursing
� breastfeeding � management of the deteriorating patient
� basic life support train the trainer � wound management
� accessing central venous access devices
� aged care health assessment � ECG interpretation
� respiratory care � legal issues for nurses
� diabetes education.

Undergraduate Program
The number of Diploma of Nursing and Registered
Nurse students undertaking clinical placement at WGHG
increased this year with 288 nurses attending for a total of
3,763 student days. In addition to this, 90 medical students
undertook clinical experience with midwifery, paramedic and
personal care attendant students also hosted throughout the
organisation.

Graduate Nurse Program
WGHG offers a Graduate Nurse program to equip Division
1 Registered Nurses with skills and experience to assist in
their transition from students to competent practitioners.
For the first time, commencing January 2012, two graduates
of a general nursing/midwifery double degree commenced
a graduate program specifically designed to meet their
transition needs. These graduates complete rotations in
midwifery, medical & surgical areas.
The general Graduate Nurse Program includes a
comprehensive round of rotations to provide a broad range
of clinical experiences and enhance career path
development. 
Areas covered include:
� Medical Ward � Surgical Ward
� Haemodialysis, Operating Theatre or District Nursing

(elective) � Emergency Department; and
� High Dependency Unit.

Ten first year nurses completed the program in 2011 and
a further twelve are currently enrolled in the 2012 programs.
In addition to this, the midwifery department has three
Bachelor of Midwifery graduates being supported.

Preceptor Program
WGHG enjoys a supportive learning culture at the coalface
of our health service. Nurses new to WGHG are supported
by 264 nurse preceptors who mentor, supervise, coach and
act as a point of reference for nursing students and graduate
nurses to assist them to become competent practitioners.
Twelve additional nurses completed preceptor training this
year.

Nurse Return to Practice and Refresher programs
The Return to Practice program is offered as part of our
nursing staff recruitment and retention strategy and is
designed for nurses who no longer hold current Division 1
or Division 2 registration. This year one nurse completed
the Return to Practice program.

Paediatrics 
Through funding obtained from the Gippsland Sub-Regional
Education Consortia; the West Gippsland Hospital hosted
a Paediatrics short course. The course ran over four
successive weeks and was attended by 18 staff. The aim
of this short course was to improve the confidence of
nurses caring for paediatric patients and families in the
paediatric ward

Orientation
Mandatory one-day general orientation programs were
attended by 111 new staff members with the program
extended to incorporate education around the WGHG
waste management and recycling program. 
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is affiliated with the
following education institutions:
� Alfred Hospital � Central Gippsland College of TAFE
� Central Gippsland Division of General Practice
� Charles Sturt University � Charles Darwin University
� Deakin University � Gippsland Education Precinct
� Latrobe University � Mayfield Education 
� Victoria University � Monash Medical Centre
� Monash University (Clayton, Gippsland, Peninsula)
� Monash University Medical School
� Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology (Sale)
� University of Melbourne � Australian Catholic University
� University of South Australia; and
� University of Darwin.

Research
The Ethics Committee continued to be monitored  to ensure
National Health and Medical Research committee guidelines
were met. These guidelines require broad community
membership as well as medical and nursing involvement.
WGHG nursing division partnered with Monash University in
the project “management of the deteriorating patient”.

Future Direction
WGHG will undertake a review of the Education Department
and make recommendations for linking into the Clinical
Placement Network.

Review of Operations: Education
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Review of Operations: Certification

Responsible Bodies Declaration

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for
West Gippsland Healthcare Group for the year ending 30 June 2012.

Data Integrity: Certification

Attestation on Data Integrity

I, Dan Weeks, certify that the West Gippsland Health Group has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes
to ensure that the Department of Health is provided with data that reflects actual performance. The West Gippsland Health
Group has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year.

Dan Weeks
Accountable Officer

Warragul 
24 August 2012

Brian Davey
Board Member

Warragul
24 August 2012
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Corporate Governance: Board of Directors

John AndersonJoanne Campbell Leanne CouplandBrian Davey John Davine

Nathan VollBarry RogersPeter Kingwill Peter Marx Margaret Robbins

Duncan Smith

Tony Wolfe

President
Brian Davey BA DipEd
Management Consultant
Committee member since November 2005 - Member of: Medical
Consultative & Advisory Committee, Remuneration committee
Board meetings attended 10 (91%)

Senior Vice President 
Joanne Campbell BEd GradDipBus GradCertInstrDes
MEd(Research)
Instructional Design Consultant 
Committee member since July 2009 - Member of: Medical
Consultative & Advisory Committee, Remuneration committee,
Human Research Ethics Committee
Board meetings attended 11 (100%)

Junior Vice President
Leanne Coupland BA(Hons)AppSc DipSocWork MASocWork
GAICD
Director
Committee member since November 2008 - Member of: Medical
Consultative & Advisory Committee, Remuneration committee,
Standards Committee
Board meetings attended 10 (91%)

Treasurer
Duncan Smith DipBus (ACCT) FCPA FTIA AIMM CFP
Accountant/Certified Financial Planner
Committee member since June 1998 - Member of: Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee
Board meetings attended 9 (82%)

Director (Immediate Past President)
John Davine BComm LLB
Solicitor
Committee member since November 1998 - Member of:
Remuneration Committee, Project Control (ED Development),
Community Advisory Council
Board meetings attended 11 (100%)

Director
John Anderson CertEDP MAICD
IT Consultant Director
Committee member since November 1994 - Board Liaison
Representative to Victorian Healthcare Association (VHA)
Board meetings attended 10 (91%)

Director
Peter Kingwill BEng MACS FGCLP FAICD
Company Director
Committee member since November 2002 - Member of: Audit
Committee
Board meetings attended 7 (64%)

Director
Peter Marx AssocDipSurveying AssocDipCartography
Licensed Land Surveyor
Committee member since November 1996 - Member of: Project
Control (ED Development)
Board meetings attended 10 (91%)

Director
Margaret Robbins BEd(AdultEd) TITC
University Lecturer
Committee member since November 1994 - Member of:
Standards Committee
Board meetings attended 10 (91%)

Director
Barry Rogers BEd (TLib)MAICD
Operations Manager
Committee member since July 2011 - Board Liaison
Representative to Warragul Linen Service
Board meetings attended 8 (73%)

Director
Nathan Voll BCommGradCertBusMgt MBA CPA MAICD
Finance and Administration Manager/Company Director
Committee member since July 2010 - Member of: Audit
Committee
Board meetings attended 11 (100%)

Director
Tony Wolfe DipIndElec TradeCertElecMech TradeCertInstTech
Operator Technician
Committee member since December 2006 - Member of: Project
Control (ED Development)
Board meetings attended 8 (73%)

Note: Eleven Board meetings were held during the year
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The Group is governed by a twelve-person Board appointed
by the Governor-in-Council upon the recommendation of
The Honourable David Davis, MP Minister for Health and
Ageing and The Honourable Mary Wooldridge, MAL,
Minister for Mental Health.

The functions of the Board of Directors as determined
by the Health Services Act 1988 are:
� to oversee and manage the Group; and 
� to ensure the services provided by the Group comply with

the requirements of the Act and the aims of the Group.

There are twelve Board of Director positions with members
appointed for a three year term. The Board appointments
for 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2014 saw the reappointment
of Directors Brian Davey, John Davine, Duncan Smith and
the appointment of new Board Director Barry Rogers.

Governance by the Board of Directors is achieved through:
� strategic planning - to ensure the visionary direction of

the Group is focused and aligned to the Group’s Mission
Statement

� effective management by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) -
the Board performs an annual performance appraisal and
sets realistic goals; the CEO is responsible for managing
the Group at an operational level

� funding of service agreements - the Board endorses plans,
strategies and budgets and ensures annual agreements
reflect accurate, achievable and desirable outcomes; the
Board monitors the performance of the Group through
appropriate budgetary processes

� local policy setting
� regularly reviewing the Group’s By-Laws and strategic plans.

Board Committees
Audit
The committee receives and makes recommendations relating
to internal audit reports and ensures compliance to matters
raised by the Auditor General’s office.

Meetings held: 5

Credentials*
The Credentials committee is responsible for defining the
clinical privileges of all medical practitioners (other than
Hospital Medical Officers) working within the Group.

Meetings held: 1

Ethics
The committee develops draft policies and procedures relating
to ethical decision-making, advises the Board on research
projects, ensures that the rights of individual patients are
respected and advises on all ethical matters referred by
the Board, healthcare providers, patients, their relatives
or any other person.

Meetings held: 5

Executive*
The Executive committee has the authority of the Board
to act on its behalf between Board meetings provided that 

all decisions taken which relate to policy are referred to
the next meeting of the Board. The committee consists
of the Board President, Past President, Senior Vice-President,
Junior Vice-President and Treasurer, with the Chief Executive
Officer in attendance.

Meetings held: Nil

Medical Advisory & Consultative*
The committee recommends to the Board the appointment
of medical practitioners in relation to visiting rights within
the Group and acts on advice of the Credentials committee.
It considers matters referred by the Medical Staff Association
and forms an interview committee for senior medical
appointments.

Meetings held: 1

Project Control
This committee oversees the design and construction phases
of major building projects to ensure that work is undertaken
cost effectively, with a view to minimising unnecessary capital
expenditure and recurrent costs.

Meetings held: 11

Remuneration
The Remuneration committee reviews the performance
and remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer.

Meetings held: 1

Standards
The Standards committee provides support and direction
to quality improvement performance monitoring throughout
the organisation.

Meetings held: 5

*meets only as required

Life Governors
The Board is responsible for appointing Life Governors.
Appointments are made to people who have shown
outstanding commitment to the Group and to staff who
reach 30 years of Long Service. Life Governor Awards were
presented at the Group’s Annual General Meeting in October. 

Receiving Life Governorships at the Annual General Meeting in
October are (L-R): John Davine, Alice Andrews, Denise Herrick,
Les Gnaden, Doreen Porter, Judith Darcy, Carol Mallows and
Gregory Bailey.
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Our People: Executive Staff

Dan Weeks Anne Curtin Linda McCoy Justin Walsh Dr Qalo Sukabula William Crotty

Dan Weeks RN BBus (Acc) MHA AFCHSM GAICD

Chief Executive Officer
Mr Weeks commenced in November 2011.  Prior to this he was the Chief Executive of Benalla Health and has
worked in rural health services in Victoria for many years. He is a surveyor with ACHS and a member of the
State Advisory Council.

Anne Curtin RN RM CorCareCert GradDipHSM

Director of Nursing & Midwifery
Miss Curtin has managed and given leadership to Nursing and Midwifery services since August 1996. Prior to this she
worked extensively in metropolitan health services for 20 years. She is chair of the Gippsland Regional Consortia for
Palliative Care, is committed to Clinical Quality and Risk Management.

William Crotty DipBus(Acc) GradDipMgt IPAA

General Manager Warragul Linen Service
Mr Crotty has managed the Linen Service since 1994 having been in the industry for 27 years. Mr Crotty is President of the
Australian Hospital Laundry and Linen Service Manager’s Association and the Victorian Institutional Laundries Association.

Dr Qalo Sukabula MBChB MHSMgt AFCHSM

Director of Medical Services
Dr Sukabula commenced in September 2010. He previously worked as Director of Medical Services at Portland District
Health as well as Director of Emergency Services at Southwest Healthcare in Warrnambool. He has experience in
emergency medicine and general practice, having worked in the south west of Victoria for the last eight years in both
clinical and administrative roles.

Justin Walsh CPA BBus(Acct) BBus (Bank&Fin)

Director of Corporate Services 
Mr Walsh re-joined in December 2011. He has worked in the public health industry for over eight years, having
previously held the position of Business Manager at Southern Health for four and a half years. Prior to that, Justin
was the WGHG Finance Manager for four years.

Linda McCoy BA GradDipMgt FCHSM CHE FAIM

Director of Community Services
Ms McCoy commenced in July 1999 and has worked extensively in Community Health services in rural and
metropolitan areas for the past 20 years and is currently a member of the Victorian Quality Council.



38

Our People: Our Staff
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)
The Group is committed to the principles of merit and
equity in people management. The EEO committee meets
on a regular basis to ensure these principles are met.

Statement of Merit and Equity
WGHG ensures a fair and transparent process for
recruitment, selection, transfer and promotion of staff.

It bases its employment selection on merit and complies
with the relevant legislation. Policies and procedures are
in place to ensure staff are treated fairly, respected and
provided with avenues for grievance and complaint
processes.

Work Experience
The Group recognises the importance of assisting
secondary and tertiary students with work experience.
Links with local schools and tertiary institutions provide
an opportunity for students to experience work across
a range of occupations.

Service Awards
WGHG recognises staff are our greatest asset. We
acknowledge their dedication and commitment each
year at the Annual General Meeting. This year Long
Service Awards were awarded to:
40 years
Pamela Sharman

35 years
Maria Kraszewski � Mark Walkingshaw

Service Awards (continued)
30 years
Gregory Bailey � Judith Darcy � Merle Irwin
Sharon Mullin � Fiona O'Brien � Rhonda Ritchie

25 years
Robyn Bennett � Lynne Bowman � Katrina Davis
Catriona Duncanson � Shirley Gleeson � Suzanne Hatfield
Beverley Hogan � Christine Hogan � Brian Lemon
Cheryl Morrison � Dorothy Mullett � Jennifer Winterton

20 years
Susan Aberdeen � Janice Bennett � Anne Boyle
Irene Hoskins � Anne Johnson � Frances Jolly
Gayle Krenauer � Bernie Lepage � Joanne Mifsud
Lyndal Sandy

15 years
Suzanne Allen � Melissa Baker � Robyn Barr
Suzanne Candappa � Eleanor Righton � Kerri Duncan
Dawn Gaffney � Wendy Kennedy � Carolyn Little
Barbara Macfarlane � Margery Mcrae � Sharon Mildren
Jayne Minichiello � Nicole O’Brien � Susan Olsen
Rhonda Russell

Below, staff presented with Long Service Awards at the Annual
General Meeting in October are back row L-R: Sharon Mildren,
Christine Hogan, Bev Hogan, Margery Mcrae, Eleanor Righton,
Sue Hatfield, Judith Darcy, Mark Walkingshaw. Front row L-R:
Jenny Winterton, Sue Aberdeen, Robyn Bennett, Pam Sharman,
Maria Kraszewski, Greg Bailey.
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EXECUTIVE TEAM
Chief Executive Officer: Dan Weeks RN BBus(Acc) MHA AFCHSM GAICD 
Director of Corporate Services: Justin Walsh CPA BBus(Acc) BBus (Bank&Fin)
Director of Medical Services: Dr Qalo Sukabula MBChB MHSMgt AFCHSM
Director of Nursing & Midwifery: 
Anne Curtin RN RM CorCareCert GradDipHSM
Director of Community Services: Linda McCoy BA GradDipMgt FCHSM CHE FAIM
General Manager Warragul Linen Service: 
William Cotty DipBus(Acc) GradDipMgt IPAA

MEDICAL STAFF
Anaesthetists:
Geoffrey Campbell MBBS DipRACOG DipAnaes
William Fraser MBBS FRACGP DipAnaes FACRRM 
Steven Grigoleit MBBS DRACOG
Karl Hood MBBS (Hons) GradDipRm(Anaes) FRACGP FACRRM
Deepak Kerhalkar MBBS FRACGP GradDipRGP(Anaes)
Robert Sinnett MBBS FFARACS FANZCA
Julie Thompson MBBS GradDipEd (Women’s Studies)
Mark Bensley MBBS FRACGP DipRACOG
Peter Lewis MBBS
Antony Wong MBBS DRACOG FRACGP 
Philip Huguenin MBBS

Cardiologist:
John Gelman MBBS (Hon) FRACP FCSANZ DDU

General Practitioners:
Gregory Shuttleworth MBBS (Hons) DipRACOG
Paba Atapattu MBBS
Cameran Azad MBChB
James Brown MBBS DipRACOG FRACGP
Roberto Celada MD (Mexico) AMC CertDipObs RACOG, FRACGP GradDipPallMed
Andrew Cook MBBS FRACGP RACGP)
Michael Crameri MBBS DipRACOG FRACGP
Dilip Dhillon MBBS FRACGP LFOM
Jennifer Eury MBBS FRANZP
Elizabeth Fitzgerald MBBS
Linda Ford MBBS (Hons) DipRACOG
Mamdouh Georgy MBBS
Sam Haifi MBChB
Stephen Jedynak MBBS
Trish Kerbi MBBS DipPallMed
Thiru Ketheswaran MBBS
Michael Kunze MBBS FRACGP
Malcolm McKelvie MBBS (Hons) FRACGP
Janine Payne MBBS (Hons) DipRACOG FRACGP
Edward (Mark) Rayner BSc (Hons) MBBS DipRACOG
Florea Roman MBBS
Louise Sterling MBBS (Hons)
Wayne Thompson BEd MBBS DipRACOG FRACGP
Jennifer Worboys MBBS FRACGP DipRACOG MPHC
Anna Baldassa FRACGP
Manju De Silva BOM
Cleo Sahhar MBBS

General Surgeons:
Paul Ah-Tye MBBS FRACS
Phillip Harris MBBS FRACS
David Merenstein MBBS FRACS
David Scott MBBS FRACS
Cyril Tsan MBBS FRACS

Geriatrician:
Craig Clarke MBBS FRACP

Nephrologist:
Colin Wood MBBS FRACP

Neurologist:
Graeme Jackson BSc(Hons) FRACP MBBS MD
David Vaughan MBBS FRACP

Obstetricians and Gynaecologists:
Nita Dhupar FRANZCOG
Harold (Lal) McLennan MBBS FRCOG FRANZCOG DDU
Luk Rombauts MD PhD FRANZCOG
David Simon MBBS DTM&H FRACGP FRANZCOG
Desiree Yap MBBS RANZCOG
Alison De Souza MBBS RANZCOG CU
Poonan Charan FRANZCOG MRACOG MBBS LHMC DELHI
Briohny Klason MBBS(Hons) FRANZCOG
Laura Linden MBBS

Oncologists:
John Scarlett MD BS FRACP FRCPA

Ophthalmologists:
Pradeep Madhok MBBS MD FRACS FRACO
Julian Sack MBBS ChFCS (Ophthal) FRACO
Mark Troski MBBS FRACO FRACS

Orthopaedic Surgeons:
Andries DeVilliers MBChB FCS Mmed FRCS FRACS 
George Owen MBBS FRACS FAOA
Peter Smith MBChB Mmed
Malcolm Thomas MBBS FRACS

Otorhinolaryngologist (ENT):
Robin Hooper FRAC FRCS FRCS(ed) MBBS

Paediatricians:
Annette Connolly MBBS FRACP
Charlie Hamilton MA MBBS FRCPCH MRCP (UK) DCH DRCOG
Sari Hayllar MBBS FRACP
Michael Nowotny MBBS BMedSci FRACP
Christopher Smith MBBS FRACP
Prof Samuel Menahem MBBS FRACP

Paediatric Surgeons:
Prof John Hutson MBBS MD FRACS
Christopher Kimber MBBS FRACS FRCS
Neil McMullin MBBS FRACS

Pathologists:
Gary Grubb MBBS PhD BMedSci FRCPA
Brendan Morrison BDS MB BCh BAO FRCPA
Nicholas Murphy MBBS FRACP FRCPA 
Patrick Van Der Hoeven MD FRCPC FRCPA

Psychiatrists:
Keith Adey MBBS DPM

Bruce Osborne BMedSci MBBS FRANZCP FRACGP FRACMA MPM

Physicians:
Mortimer Fitzgerald BSc (Hons) MBBCh (NIreland) FRACP
Bretton Forge MBBS (Hons) FRACP
Bruce Maydom MBBS (Hons) FRACP
Daniel Stefanski MBBS
Michael Keating MBBS
Jeffery Tu FRACP
Julian Rong MBBS FRACP
Michael Swan MBBS
Jeremy Ryan MBBS

Plastic Surgeon:
Thomas Robbins MBBS FRCS (Ed) FRCS FRACS

Breast Surgeon:
Jennifer Senior MBBS FRACS

Radiologists:
Robert Brownlee MBBS FRACR
Mohit Gupta MBBS
Eileen Huin MBBS FRCR FRANZCR
Sanjay Kapur MBBS FRACR
Tissa Kulatunge MBBS MD
Nirmalkumar Prabhu Kesava MBBS MD
Gayathri Savarkudele MBBS
Kelvin Stribley MBBS FRACR
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Urologists:
Christoher Love MBBS FRACS
Philip McCahy MBBS FRCS(Ed) FRCS (Urol)
Vascular Surgeon:
Alan Saunder FRACS
Honorary Dental Surgeons:
Lindsay Bishop BDSc
Previn Blanchard BDSc
Ian Brooker BDSc
David Griffiths BDSc

ALLIED HEALTH
Dietitians:
Ulla Schmidt Reg Dietitian GradCertPaedNutrn&Dietetics
Health Information Services:
Diane Draper BMedRecAdmin DipFMI CHIM
Medical Social Worker:
Marja Jamieson BASocServices  
Occupational Therapy:
Sue Aberdeen BAppSc(OT) CertIVTraining&Assessment
Physiotherapy:
Richard Adams BAppSc(Physio) CertIVTraining&Assessment
Angela Jacob BAAppSci (Physio) Post Grad Cert
Physiotheraphy(Continence&PelvicFloorRehab)
Speech Pathology:
Anne Ballantyne LACST (retired)
Bethany Toohill BHlthSc(Speech Pathology)

NURSING SERVICES
Deputy Director of Nursing/Patient Services Manager:
Kathy Kinrade RN FRCNA GradDipCritCare (Emergency) MN AdvDipManagement
Associate Director of Nursing (Projects):
Diane More RN BArts(Psych&Sociol) DipBuilding CertIVManagement
Associate Director of Nursing (Nursing Services):
Robyn Wright RN GradCertNursing(Emergency) DipHRManagement MRCNA
Associate Director of Nursing (Aged Care):
Jan Bennett RN CertSocialGerentology GradDipAdvNursing(Ger)
Staff Development Manager:
Jeanette Dyason BAppSci(Nursing) GradDipCritCare GradDipAdvNursg-ClinTeachg,
DipManagement
Nurse Educators:
Louise Allen RN BNursing CertPaed&NeonatalIntensiveCare GradCertProfHlthEd
CertWorkplace Training&Assessment Blood Transfusion Trainer
Jan Ashby RN GradDipPaed CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
Sue Crosby RN RM BNursing CertIVworkplaceTraining&Assessment
Stephen Earl BNursing CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
Caroline Forrest RN GradDipGerontology CertIVTraining&Assessment
Cathy Smith BNursing GradCertNsg(CritCare) CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
(commended 8/11)
Vicki Kenney Smart Lift Program Coordinator
Louise Allen Blood Transfusion Trainer
Nursing Coordinators:
Leanne Duncan RN
Elizabeth Fenwick RN RM BSocSc CertPallCare
Jeanette Heywood RN RM
Janet Moore RN BNursingPrac
Pam Owen RN BN DipBus(FrontlineManagement)
Tania Piner RN CertCritCareNursing DipAppSci(Nursing)
Linda Shearn RN CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
Marie Smith RN RM
Coralie Tyrrell RN CertS&IC CertComBusApplic DipHlthSci(Infcntrl)
Kerrie Wright RN RM BNPrac(Paeds)
Joyce Williams RN
Clinical Nurse Consultants:
Breast Care (McGrath):
Kathy Munro RN RM GradDipCommHealthNursing (commenced 9/11)
Cardiology: Patricia Nankervis RN CorCareCert
Diabetes Education:
Donna Ablett RN BNursing BNursingPrac(Nephrology) GradDipHealthSci(DiabetesEdu)
Infection Control:
Coralie Tyrrell RN CertS&IC CertComBusApplic DipHlthSci(Infcntrl)
Clinical Nurse Managers
Andrews House:
Janet Moore RN BNursingPrac DipBus(FrontlineManagement)
Cooinda Lodge:
Shirley Gleeson RN OpRoomCert CertS&IC

District Nursing:
Barbara Milner RN GradCertCritCare CertPallCareNursing CertIVTraining&Assessment
Emergency Department:
Sue Colby RN GradCertNursing (Emergency) DipBus(FrontlineManagement)
Haemodialysis:
Melissa O’Farrell BNursing GradCertNephrologyNsg CertFirstLineManagement
Robert Stefanovski RN CertNephrology
High Dependency Unit:
Teena Twaddle BNursing GradDipNursing(Emergency) CertIVTraining&Assessment 
DipFrontlineManagement
Oncology:
Anny Byrne RN BAppSci(Nursing) Breast Care Nurse(accred) CertChemotherapyPractice
GradCertCancerCare CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
Operating Room:
Daniel Scholtes RN BN GradDipPeriOperativeNursing
GradCertAdvNursingPrac(Rural&Remote) GradCertHealthManagement
Post Acute Care:
Teresa Holgate RN CertPalliativeCare GradCertWoundManagement
DipBus(FrontlineManagement)
Pre-Admisson:
Stephanie Ives RN BComp(SystemDevelopment) AssocDipAppSci(Computing) 
DipBus(FrontlineManagement)
Ward 2/Paediatrics/Day Surgery:
Helen Dunlop RN RM GradCertPaeds
Franka De Sisto BNursing MN Management GradDipPaed
Medical Ward 3:
Bernadette McKenna RN BNursing CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
DipBus(FrontlineManagement)
Sue Smith RN MN 
Midwifery Ward 5:
Caroline Edwards RN GradDipMidwifery&Women’sHealth DipBus(FrontlineManagement)
Hospital Admission Risk Program:
Jenny Velvin AssocDipArts(Welfare) BASocialSciences(Psychology)
Medical Education Officer:
Wendy Tilling BAppSc(Nursing) GradDipCritCare(Emergency)
CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
Librarian:
Anne Boyle DipLib

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Aboriginal Hospital Liaison Officer: Dot Mullett (deceased 3/12)
Cognitive Dementia and Memory Service (CDAMS):
Audra Fenton RN MN (Mental Health) DipBusManagement
Community Health Nurse/Rawson Site Manager:
Elizabeth Pike RN RB (resigned 05/12)
Continence Service:
Fiona McLennan RN BNursPrac(Nephrology) CertCardioThoracicIntCare GradCertHealth
CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
Rural Allied Health Service Manager: Kate Palmer BAppSc(OT)
CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment

WARRAGUL LINEN SERVICE
Administration Manager: Gary Smart BBus CPA
Production Manager: Nanette Gilligan

CORPORATE SERVICES
Consulting Suites Manager: Christine Phillipou BBus CAHRI
Customer Services Manager/Quality Coordinator: Heather Gillespie RN RM CertS&IC
Elective Surgery Access Coordinator: Debra Cole RN RM BHlthSc(Admin)
Engineering Services Manager:
Peter Jayaweera GradDipEng (Maintenance Management) MIHEA
Environmental Services Manager:
Maria Kraszewski CertEnSerMgt CertEFTMgt CertIVWorkplaceTraining&Assessment
CertCleaningStandardsAuditing
Executive Assistant: Alyson Mills 
Finance Manager: Rachel Brewer BBus(Acc) CPA AFCHSE
Food Services Manager: Kathy Higgins DipAppSci (Food & Food Service) MIHHC 
Information Systems Manager:
Joseph Oppedisano BSc GradDipEd GradDipComp MACS
Occupational Health and Safety Officer: Brian Lemon IAA DipOH&S
Payroll/Personnel Officer: Anne Pryjmak
Public Relations Manager: Pam Dyson MFIA (resigned 05/12)
Supply Manager: Sean McLeish (resigned 05/12)
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WGHG is committed to minimising the impact we have
on the environment. Where possible, systems are in place
to improve water and energy conservation and waste
recycling and management.

Power 
This year, the Hospital was the recipient of infrastructure
equipment including an Emergency Generator,
Uninterruptable Power Supply (UPS) and an Air
Compressor from the Old Royal Children’s Hospital
Parkville site in Melbourne. 

The prior generator installed had a load capacity of 460
Kva (Kilo-volt-amps) and the Hospital’s electrical load had
reached its maximum. The new generator is equipped to
handle capacity loads of 1100 Kva accommodating future
development needs. The Department Of Health assisted by
financing the relocation and installation of the equipment.

The UPS will ensure power is maintained to Theatres at all
times. The Air Compressor will be used for general air
supply in the workshops and the boiler house. 

Waste Management
The Waste management program incorporates a
comprehensive recycling program including the correct
disposal of clinical, sharp and general waste. Clinical and
sharps are disposed of safely and securely in accordance
with National Health and Medical Research Council
guidelines. Recyclable items are collected and managed
by an accredited recycling company and general waste
disposed of to landfill. 

This year, a review of waste management systems was
commenced, aimed to reduce landfill volume. Future
initiatives include implementing an advanced recycling
system. 

This year’s waste management compliance score was
98.3% versus the required 95% benchmark.

Water 
The water recycling program endeavors to reduce our
impact on the environment and to promote environmentally
friendly practices.

Our objectives are:
� to recycle water where possible
� to maximise the catchment of rain water
� to minimise water consumption.

This year, recycling and catchment initiatives resulted
in water consumption savings of 2,733 kilo litres. The
Group complies with water restrictions enforced by the
responsible authorities.

Our Environment

Water consumed WGH site (’000 kilolitres)

0 20 25 30 35 40 45

2011 30,837 kilolitres

2010 36,377 kilolitres

2012 28,104 kilolitres

2009 37,833 kilolitres

2008 40,905 kilolitres

2,700 less kl of water were used this year due to water saving
initiatives.

Warragul Linen Service
Litres of water used vs kilograms of linen procesed

0 2 4 6 8 10 12

2011 8.15 litres

2010 10.37 litres

2009 10.38 litres

2008 10.61 litres

2012 8.33 litres

Warragul Linen Service has continued to reduce the litres of water
used to wash items over the past five years.
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Our Community: Volunteers

FUNDRAISING INCOME 2008 - 2012 ($ ’000)

2011

0 400 500 600 700 800 900 1,000 1,200

$1,022,000

2010 $680,000

2009 613,000

2008 $1,200,000

2012 $523,000

Fundraising 
Throughout the year WGHG received $523,247 through
the generous donations, fundraising activities, events and
bequests, which comprised of the following:

� Donations $391,308
� Fundraising $75,270
� Bequests $56,668

Above, Trafalgar Auxiliary volunteers Christmas lunch celebration.
Pictured L-R back row are (standing): Sue Murphy, Isabel
Robertson, Carmel Snowball, Helen Cocksedge, Jan Forsyth,
Glenys Brennan, Gay Mynard, Mick Brennan, Janina Hiel and
Sue Rose. Front row (seated) L-R: Jean Webb, Delsa Bury,
Audrey Paynter, Lorrie Mills, Hazel Rouget.
Below, a fundraising Trivia Night organised by several local
families in October 2011, raised monies to purchase beds and air
mattresses for West Gippsland Palliative Care Services. Pictured
L-R: Anne Curtin (Director of Nursing & Midwifery), Lorna Christie
(Donor), MaryAnn Bills (Palliative Care Team Leader), Glenys Eacott
(Donor), Barb Milner (District Nursing Services Nurse Unit
Manager), Sally Freemantle (Donor), Sam Prowse with son Zephir
(Donor) and Toine Bovill (Palliative Care Coordinator)

The West Gippsland Healthcare Group has a strong
volunteer support base of over 220 people. Volunteers
contribute their time freely and assist the Group in not
only enhancing the programs and services we provide,
but contribute financially through fundraising events and
activities. 

The volunteers are an invaluable part of the team at
WGHG and the Board of Directors and staff recognise
their contribution and support they provide to the Group.

We are grateful to the following volunteer groups for their
continued support:
� Andrews House � Community Health
� Community Kitchens � Community Rehabilitation Centre
� Cooinda Lodge � Drouin Auxiliary � Heartbeat
� Mobile Book Trolley Service 
� Palliative Care Service Auxiliary
� Past Nursing Graduates Archive Department
� Rawson Auxiliary
� Trafalgar & District Community Opportunity Shop

The outstanding service of long serving volunteers was
recognised at the Annual General Meeting held in October
with Life Governorships awarded to volunteers who
reached 10 years of service during the year. 

Recognised for their contribution were:
� Carol Mallows - Drouin Auxiliary Opp Shop
� Les Gnaden - Cooinda Lodge Support Group
� Denice Herrick - Cooinda Lodge Support Group
� Doreen Porter - Heartbeat Support Group
� Alice Andrews - Andrews Foundation
� John Davine - Board of Directors
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Our Community: Fundraising, Donations and Sponsorship

Over $65,000
Drouin Auxiliary

Over $50,000
ANZ Trustees Philanthropy Partners

Over $40,000
Trafalgar & District Community Opportunity Shop

Over $30,000
Richard Davis & Associates
Drouin & District Community Bank

Over $25,000
Robin Hood Inn Fundraising Group

$10,000 - $20,000
Ms S Freemantle
Andrews Foundation

$5,000 - $10,000
Warragul Lioness Club
Mrs D Pratt
Smith McCarthy Wilson
Erica & District Progress Association
Mrs V Fryer
Mr F Hamilton

$2,000 - $5,000
Warragul Rotary Club
Club 88
B P Longwarry
Mr & Mrs J & A Cuthbertson
Drouin Lodge No 173
Mrs T Dewsbury
Drouin Rotary Club

We gratefully acknowledge each member and group within our community who contributed financially to West Gippsland
Healthcare Group during the year. Your generosity enhances the comfort and care we provide to patients, residents and
clients.

Under $1000

We received numerous donations during the year for
which we are truly grateful.

Anonymous Donations

A number of anonymous donations were also received,
which we gratefully also acknowledge.

In Memoriam Donations

We receive many in memoriam donations following
the death of a loved one, for which we are most
appreciative. 

$1,000 - $2,000
Mr N McCoomb
Neerim District Lions Club
Miss J O’Connor
Warragul Bowling Club – Ladies
Mrs J Laxton
Mr J Garnett
BJ Bearings Pty Ltd
Drop-in Day Centre of Trafalgar
Mrs H Fielden
Mrs N Miller
Mr M Eyles
Mr J Birrell
MR & Mrs B & E Sherriff
Drouin Anglican Church Opportunity Shop
Radio 3GG/Star FM
Buln Buln Primary School
Mt Baw Baw Apline Resort
Tetoora Road Ladies Club
The Diner
Mr & Mrs J & J Wolswinkel

Fundraising is conducted in accordance with the Fundraising Appeals Act 1998.
Donations of $2.00 and over are tax deductible and receipts are issued for all donations.
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group
Comprehensive Operating Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Financial: Financial Results

Revenue from Operating Activities 2 74,273 70,337
Revenue from Non-Operating Activities 2 2,806 3,064
Employee Expenses 3 (54,250) (50,351)
Non Salary Labour Costs 3 (5,221) (5,124)
Supplies & Consumables 3 (8,270) (7,662)
Other Expenses 3 (10,651) (10,294)

Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items (1,313) (30)

Capital Purpose Income 2 2,601 4,816
Depreciation and Amortisation 4 (5,753) (5,804)
Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income 3 (169) (372)

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR (4,634) (1,390)

Other comprehensive income

Net fair value revaluation on Non Financial Assets 14a - 639

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR (4,634) (751)

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note 2012 2011
$’000 $’000
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Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 12,173 13,413
Receivables 6 2,632 3,700
Investments and Other Financial Assets 7 3,658 2,943
Inventories 8 244 278
Other Assets 9 174 203

Total Current Assets 18,881 20,537

Non-Current Assets

Receivables 6 456 384
Investments and other Financial Assets 7 90 90
Property, Plant & Equipment 10 63,517 64,709

Total Non-Current Assets 64,063 65,183

TOTAL ASSETS 82,944 85,720

Current Liabilities

Payables 11 3,151 3,939
Provisions 12 13,368 11,775
Other Liabilities 13 3,658 2,943

Total Current Liabilities 20,177 18,657

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 12 1,391 1,053

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,391 1,053

TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,568 19,710

NET ASSETS 61,376 66,010

EQUITY

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus 14a 27,466 27,466
Contributed Capital 14b 32,522 32,522
Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits) 14c 1,388 6,022

TOTAL EQUITY 14c 61,376 66,010

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities 18 
Commitments 17

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note 2012 2011
$’000 $’000

West Gippsland Healthcare Group
Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2012
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Balance at 1 July 2010 26,827 32,522 7,412 66,761

Net result for the year - - (1,390) (1,390)
Other comprehensive income for the year 14a 639 - - 639

Restated balance at 30 June 2011 27,466 32,522 6,022 66,010

Net result for the year - - (4,634) (4,634)

Balance at 30 June 2012 27,466 32,522 1,388 61,376

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Property Contributed Accumulated Total
Plant & Capital Surpluses/

Equipment (Deficits)
Revaluation

Surplus
Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Grants from Government 58,447 53,847
Patient and Resident Fees Received 2,855 3,288
Private Practice Fees Received 107 136
GST Received from/(paid to) ATO 1,223 877
Interest Received 848 860
Dividend Received 10 17
Other Receipts 15,388 15,502
Employee Expenses Paid (52,319) (49,755)
Non Salary Labour Costs (5,221) (5,124)
Payments for Supplies & Consumables (19,744) (17,693)
Cash Generated from Operations 1,594 1,955

Capital Grants from Government 1,077 2,885
Capital Donations and Bequests Received 523 1,022
Other Capital Contributions (100) -

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 15 3,094 5,862

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for Non-Financial Assets (4,531) (3,154)
Proceeds from sale of Non-Financial Assets 197 242
Investment (purchases)/proceeds - (337)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (4,334) (3,249)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Borrowings - Department of Health - (36)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (36)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD (1,240) 2,577

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,413 10,836

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 5 12,173 13,413

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note 2012 2011
$’000 $’000

West Gippsland Healthcare Group
Cash Flow Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2012
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West Gippsland Healthcare Group 2011/12
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements are a general purpose financial report which have been prepared in accordance with the
Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AASs) issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department
of Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Minister for Finance.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs
applicable to “not-for-profit” Health Services under the AASs.
The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of West Gippsland Healthcare Group on
6th September 2012.

(b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions
or other events is reported.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2012, and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2011.
The going concern basis was used to prepare the financial statements. 
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Group.
The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria for those items, that is they are recognised in the reporting period to which they
relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for the revaluation
of certain non-financial assets and financial instruments, as noted. Particularly, exceptions to the historical cost
convention include:
� Non-current physical assets, which subsequent to acquisition, are measured at valuation and are re-assessed

with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their fair values;
� Derivative financial instruments, managed investment schemes, certain debt securities, and investment properties

after initial recognition, which are measured at fair value through profit or loss; and
� Available-for-sale investments which are measured at fair value with movements reflected in equity until the asset

is derecognised.
� The fair value of assets other than land is generally based on their depreciated replacement value.
Historical cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. 
In the application of AASs management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision, and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgements made by management
in the application of AASs that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates, with a risk of material
adjustments in the subsequent reporting period, relate to:
� the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 1(i);
� actuarial assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on the likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave

claims, future salary movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(j)).

(c) Reporting Entity 
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of the West Gippsland Healthcare Group.
Its principal address is:
41 Landsborough Street
Warragul
Victoria 3820
A description of the nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations,
which does not form part of these financial statements.
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(d) Principles of Consolidation
Jointly controlled assets or operations
Interests in jointly controlled assets or operations are not consolidated by the Group, but are accounted for
in accordance with the policy outlined in Note 1(h) Financial Assets.

(e) Scope and presentation of financial statements
Fund Accounting
The Group operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital
Funds. The Group’s Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent capital donations and receipts from
fund-raising activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.
Services Supported By Health Services Agreement and Services Supported By Hospital
and Community Initiatives
Activities classified as Services Supported by Health Services Agreement (HSA) are substantially funded by the
Department of Health and includes Residential Aged Care Services (RACS) and are also funded from other sources
such as the Commonwealth, patients and residents, while Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
(H&CI) are funded by the Health Service's own activities or local initiatives and/or the Commonwealth.
Residential Aged Care Service
The Cooinda Lodge Nursing Home (on site) and Andrew’s House Hostel (Trafalgar) are an integral part of the Group
and share its resources. An apportionment of land and buildings has been made based on floor space. The results
of the two operations have been segregated based on actual revenue earned and expenditure incurred by each
operation in Note 2a and 3a to the financial statements.
Comprehensive operating statement
The Comprehensive operating statement includes the subtotal entitled ‘Net result Before Capital & Specific Items’
to enhance the understanding of the financial performance of the Group.  This subtotal reports the result excluding
items such as capital grants, assets received or provided free of charge, depreciation, and items of an unusual nature
and amount such as specific income and expenses.  The exclusion of these items is made to enhance matching of
income and expenses so as to facilitate the comparability and consistency of results between years and Victorian
Public Health Services.  The ‘Net result Before Capital & Specific Items’ is used by the management of the Group,
the Department of Health and the Victorian Government to measure the ongoing performance of Health Services
in operating hospital services.
Capital and specific items, which are excluded from this sub-total, comprise:
� Capital purpose income, which comprises all tied grants, donations and bequests received for the purpose of

acquiring non-current assets, such as capital works, plant and equipment or intangible assets. It also includes
donations of plant and equipment (refer Note 1 (f)). Consequently the recognition of revenue as capital purpose
income is based on the intention of the provider of the revenue at the time the revenue is provided. 

� Specific income/expense, comprises the following items, where material:
� Non-current asset revaluation increments/decrements

� Depreciation and amortisation, as described in Note 1 (g)
� Expenditure using capital purpose income, comprises expenditure which either falls below the asset capitalisation

threshold or doesn’t meet asset recognition criteria and therefore does not result in the recognition of an asset in
the balance sheet, where funding for that expenditure is from capital purpose income.

Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are categorised either as current or non-current.
Statement of changes in equity
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of each non-owner and owner equity opening balance
at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period. It also shows
separately changes due to amounts recognised in the comprehensive result and amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income related to other nonowner changes in equity.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating activities, investing activities, or
financing activities. This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows.

(f) Income Recognition
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the income can be reliably measured. Unearned income at
reporting date is reported as income received in advance.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.
Government Grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, government grants and other transfers of income (other than
contributions by owners) are recognised as income when the Group gains control of the underlying assets
irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on the Group’s use of the contributions.  
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Contributions are deferred as income in advance when the health service has a present obligation to repay them
and the present obligation can be reliably measured.
Indirect Contributions from the Department of Health

- Insurance is recognised as revenue following advice from the Department of Health.
- Long Service Leave (LSL) - Revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line with the
arrangements set out in the Metropolitan Health and Aged Care Services Division Hospital Circular 14/2009. 

Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.
Private Practice Fees
Private practice fees are recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised.
Donations and Other Bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. If donations are for a special purpose, they may
be appropriated to a reserve, such as the specific restricted purpose reserve.
Dividend Revenue
Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial
asset.
Sale of investments
The gain/loss on the sale of investments is recognised when the investment is realised. 

(g) Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
Cost of Goods Sold
Costs of goods sold are recognised when the sale of an item occurs by transferring the cost or value of the item/s
from inventories.
Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
� Wages and salaries;
� Annual leave; 
� Sick leave; 
� Long service leave; and
� Superannuation expenses which are reported differently depending upon whether employees are members

of defined benefit or defined contribution plans. 
Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the
employer contributions that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during
the reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.
Defined benefit superannuation plans
The amount charged to the comprehensive operating statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans
represents the contributions made by the Group to the superannuation plans in respect of the services of current staff
during the reporting period. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of each
plan.
Employees of the Group are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the Group contributes to both the
defined benefit and defined contribution plans.  The defined benefit plan(s) provide benefits based on years of service
and final average salary.
The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by the Group are as
follows:
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Fund Contributions Paid or Payable for the year

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Defined benefit plans:
Health Super 168 184

Defined contribution plans:
Health Super 3,507 3,465
Other 529 402

Total 4,204 4,051
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Depreciation 
Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets
so as to allocate their cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives.  Depreciation is generally calculated on a
straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful
life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and depreciation method for all assets are reviewed at least annually.
This depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of Health.
Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings, but excluding land and
investment properties. Depreciation begins when the asset is available for use, which is when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in a manner intended by management. 
The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges
are based.
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2012 2011

Buildings
- Structure Shell Building Fabric 45 to 60 years 45 to 60 years
- Site Engineering Services and Central Plant 20 to 30 years 20 to 30 years
Central Plant
- Fit Out 20 to 30 years 20 to 30 years
- Trunk Reticulated Building Systems 30 to 40 years 30 to 40 years
Plant & Equipment 3 to 7 years 3 to 7 years
Medical Equipment 7 to 10 years 7 to 10 years
Computers and Communication 3 years 3 years
Furniture and Fitting 13 years 13 years
Motor Vehicles 10 years 10 years

As part of the Buildings valuation, building values were componentised and each component assessed for its useful
life which is represented above.

(h) Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of 3 months or less, which are held for the purpose of meeting short term
cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Receivables
Receivables consist of:
- Contractual receivables, which includes of mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, loans to third parties,
accrued investment income, and finance lease receivables; and

- Statutory receivables, which includes predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government and GST input
tax credits recoverable.

Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables.
Statutory receivables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment),
but are not classified as financial instruments because they do not arise from a contract.
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less any accumulated impairment.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of
recognition. Collectability of debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be uncollectible
are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has occurred. Bad debts are written off when identified.
Investments and Other Financial Assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 
Investments are classified in the following categories:
- Loans and receivables; and
- Available-for-sale financial assets.
The Group classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the purpose for
which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its other financial assets at initial
recognition.
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The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss are subject to annual review for
impairment.
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
less impairment. Term deposits with maturity greater than three months are also measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method, less impairment.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Investments in jointly controlled assets and operations
In respect of any interest in jointly controlled assets, the Group recognises in the financial statements:
� its share of jointly controlled assets;
� any liabilities that it had incurred;
� its share of liabilities incurred jointly by the joint venture;
� any income earned from the selling or using of its share of the output from the joint venture; and
� any expenses incurred in relation to being an investor in the joint venture.
Impairment of Financial Assets
At the end of each reporting period the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial asset is impaired. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments,
debts which are more than 60 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings. All financial instruments assets,
except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.
Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Bad debts considered as written off and
allowances for doubtful receivables are expensed.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
Where a financial asset’s fair value at balance date has reduced by 20 per cent or more than its cost price; or where
its fair value has been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or more months, the financial instrument is treated as
impaired.
In order to determine an appropriate fair value as at 30 June 2012 for its portfolio of financial assets, the Group
obtained a valuation based on the best available advice using an estimation through a reputable financial institution.
This value was compared against valuation methodologies provided by the issuer as at 30 June 2012. These
methodologies were critiqued and considered to be consistent with standard market valuation techniques.
In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments,
professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational
methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

(i) Non-Financial Assets
Inventories 
Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale, consumption or for distribution at no or nominal
cost in the ordinary course of business operations. It includes land held for sale and excludes depreciable assets.
Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential. All other inventories,
including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The bases used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for distribution include current replacement
cost and technical or functional obsolescence.  Technical obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for some
or all of the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer matches existing technologies.  Functional
obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions the way it did when it was first acquired.
Cost for all other inventory is measured on the basis of weighted average cost. 
Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal considerations are measured at current replacement cost at the date
of acquisition.
Inventories acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration are measured at current replacement cost at the date
of acquisition.
Property, Plant and Equipment
All non-current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.  Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the date
of acquisition.
Crown Land is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is
made for any legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made
in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s)
are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply.
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Land and Buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.
Plant, Equipment and Vehicles are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.  Depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for fair
value because of the short lives of the assets concerned.
Revaluations of Non-current Physical Assets
Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103D Non-current
physical assets. This revaluation process normally occurs at least every five years, based upon the asset’s
Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material
changes in values. Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim
revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or decrements
arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an
increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously recognised as an
expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent that a
credit balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of assets, they are debited directly
to the asset revaluation surplus.
Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against
one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes. 
Revaluation surplus is not transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.
In accordance with FRD 103D, the Group’s non-current physical assets were assessed to determine whether
revaluation of the non-current physical assets was required.
Investment Properties
Investment properties represent properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties exclude properties held to meet service delivery objectives of the State of Victoria.
Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised
when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will
flow to the Health Service.
Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment properties are revalued to fair value, determined annually by
independent valuers. Changes in the fair value are recognised as income or expenses in the period that they arise.
Investment properties are neither depreciated nor tested for impairment.
Rental revenue from leasing of investment properties is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement in
the periods in which it is receivable on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Other non-financial assets
Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or
services or that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.

(j) Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:

� contractual payables which consist predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when the Group
becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services.

The normal credit terms for accounts payable are usually Nett 30 days.
� Statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payable.

Contractual payables are initially recognised at fair value, and then subsequently carried at amortised cost.
Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as
financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they
do not arise from a contract.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic
benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific
to the provision.
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be received from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Employee Benefits
Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave, Sick Leave and Accrued Days Off
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave accumulating sick leave and accrued
days off which are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for
employee benefits in respect of employee’s services up to the reporting date, and are classified as current liabilities
and measured at their nominal values.
Those liabilities that are not expected to be settled within 12 months are recognised in the provision for employee
benefits as non-current liabilities, measured at present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Current Liability - unconditional LSL (representing 10 or more years of continuous service) is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements as a current liability even where the Group does not expect to settle the liability within 12
months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee
take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:

� present value - component that the Group does not expect to settle within 12 months; and
� nominal value - component that the Group expects to settle within 12 months.

Non-Current Liability - conditional LSL (representing less than 10 years of continuous service) is disclosed as
a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement until the employee
has completed the requisite years of service. Conditional LSL is required to be measured at present value.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods
of service. Expected future payments are discounted using interest rates of Commonwealth Government guaranteed
securities in Australia. 
On-Costs
Employee benefit on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation, superannuation are recognised together
with provisions for employee benefits.
Superannuation liabilities
The Group does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the superannuation plans because
the Health Service has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only
obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance
administers and discloses the State’s defined benefit liabilities in its financial statements.

(k) Equity
Contributed Capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public
Sector Entities and FRD 119 Contributions by Owners, appropriations for additions to the net asset base have been
designated as contributed capital. Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions that have
been designated as contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital.
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current
physical assets.

(l) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These
commitments are disclosed by way of note (refer to note 17) at their nominal value and are inclusive of the goods
and services tax (“GST”) payable.  In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant
information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects are stated. The future expenditures
cease to be disclosed once the related liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.

(m) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of note
and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive
of GST receivable or payable respectively.

(n) Goods and Services Tax 
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense.
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Standard/ Interpretation Impact on public sector
entity financial statements

Applicable for annual
reporting periods

beginning on
Summary

AASB 9 Financial instruments This standard simplifies
requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial
assets resulting from Phase 1
of the IASB’s project to replace
IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
(AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement).

1 Jan 2013 Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

This Standard establishes
principles for the presentation
and preparation of consolidated
financial statements when an entity
controls one or more other entities
and supersedes those
requirements in AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements and
Interpretation 112 Consolidation -
Special Purpose Entities.

1 Jan 2013 Not-for-profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
10 in a not-for-profit context. 
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements This Standard requires entities that
have an interest in arrangements
that are controlled jointly to assess
whether the arrangement is a joint
operation or joint venture. AASB 11
shall be applied for an arrangement
that is a joint operation. It also
replaces parts of requirements
in AASB 131 Interests in Joint
Ventures.

1 Jan 2013 Not-for-profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
11 in a not-for-profit context. 
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as an operating cash flow.
Commitments for expenditure and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

(o) Events after the reporting period
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Adjustments are made to
amounts recognised in the financial statements for events which occur after the reporting period and before the
date the financial statements are authorised for issue, where those events provide information about conditions which
existed in the reporting period. Note disclosure is made about events between the end of the reporting period and
the date the financial statements are authorised for issue where the events relate to conditions which arose after the
end of the reporting period and which may have a material impact on the results of subsequent reporting periods.

(p) Rounding Of Amounts
All amounts shown in the financial statements are expressed to the nearest $1,000 unless otherwise stated.
Figures in the financial statements may not equal due to rounding.

(q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Certain new Australian accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for
the 30 June 2012 reporting period. 
As at 30 June 2012, the following standards and interpretations had been issued but were not mandatory for the
reporting period ending 30 June 2012. They become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods
commencing after the stated operative dates as detailed in the table below. The Group has not and does not intend
to adopt these standards early.
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Standard/ Interpretation
Impact on public sector

entity financial statements

Applicable for annual
reporting periods

beginning on
Summary

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

This Standard requires disclosure
of information that enables users
of financial statements to evaluate
the nature of, and risks associated
with, interests in other entities and
the effects of those interests on
the financial statements. This
Standard replaces the disclosure
requirements in AASB 127 and
AASB 131.

1 Jan 2013 Not-for-profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
12 in a not-for-profit context. 
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement This Standard outlines the
requirements for measuring the fair
value of assets and liabilities and
replaces the existing fair value
definition and guidance in other
AASs. AASB 13 includes a ‘fair
value hierarchy’ which ranks the
valuation technique inputs into
three levels using unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;
other observable inputs; and
unobservable inputs.

1 Jan 2013 Disclosure for fair value
measurements using unobservable
inputs are relatively onerous
compared to disclosure for fair
value measurements using
observable inputs. Consequently,
the Standard may increase the
disclosures for public sector
entities that have assets measured
using depreciated replacement
cost.

AASB 119 Employee Benefits In this revised Standard for defined
benefit superannuation plans, there
is a change to the methodology in
the calculation of superannuation
expenses, in particular there is now
a change in the split between
superannuation interest expense
(classified as transactions) and
actuarial gains and losses (classified
as ‘Other economic flows - other
movements in equity’) reported on
the comprehensive operating
statement.

1 Jan 2013 Not-for-profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. 
While the total superannuation
expense is unchanged, the revised
methodology is expected to have
a negative impact on the net result
from transactions of the general
government sector and for those
few Victorian public sector entities
that report superannuation defined
benefit plans.

AASB 127 Separate Financial
Statements

This revised Standard prescribes
the accounting and disclosure
requirements for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates when an entity prepares
separate financial statements.

1 Jan 2013 Not-for-profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
127 in a not-for-profit context. 
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.

AASB 128 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

This revised Standard sets out
the requirements for the
application of the equity method
when accounting for investments
in associates and joint ventures.

1 Jan 2013 Not-for-profit entities are not
permitted to apply this Standard
prior to the mandatory application
date. The AASB is assessing the
applicability of principles in AASB
128 in a not-for-profit context. 
As such, impact will be assessed
after the AASB’s deliberation.
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Standard/ Interpretation
Impact on public sector

entity financial statements

Applicable for annual
reporting periods

beginning on
Summary

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers
of Australian Accounting Standards

This Standard establishes a
differential financial reporting
framework consisting of two tiers
of reporting requirements for
preparing general purpose
financial statements.

1 July 2013 The Victorian Government
is currently considering the impacts
of Reduced Disclosure Requirements
(RDRs) for certain public sector
entities and has not decided if
RDRs will be implemented in the
Victorian public sector.

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3,
4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118,
121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139,
1023 and 1038 and Interpretations
10 and 12]

This Standard gives effect to
consequential changes arising
from the issuance of AASB 9. 

1 Jan 2013 No significant impact is expected
from these consequential
amendments on entity reporting. 

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from Reduced Disclosure
Requirements

This Standard makes amendments
to many Australian Accounting
Standards, including Interpretations,
to introduce reduced disclosure
requirements to the
pronouncements for application
by certain types of entities.

1 July 2013 The Victorian Government is
currently considering the impacts
of Reduced Disclosure
Requirements (RDRs) for certain
public sector entities and has not
decided if RDRs will be implemented
in the Victorian public sector.

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 (December
2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101,
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127,
28, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139,
1023 & 1038 and Interpretations
2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

These consequential amendments
are in relation to the introduction
of AASB 9.

1 Jan 2013 No significant impact is expected
from these consequential
amendments on entity reporting.

AASB 2010-8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards -
Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets [AASB 112]

This amendment provides a
practical approach for measuring
deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities when measuring
investment property by using the
fair value model in AASB 140
Investment Property.

Beginning 1 Jan 2012 This amendment provides
additional clarification through
practical guidance.

AASB 2010-10 Further
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
[AASB 2009-11 & AASB 2010-7]  

The amendments ultimately affect
AASB 1 First-time Adoption of
Australian Accounting Standards
and provide relief for first-time
adopters of Australian
Accounting Standards from
having to reconstruct transactions
that occurred before their date
of transition to Australian
Accounting Standards.

1 Jan 2013 No significant impact is expected
on entity reporting.

AASB 2011-2 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from the Trans-Tasman
Convergence Project – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements
[AASB 101 & AASB 1054]

The objective of this amendment
is to include some additional
disclosure from the Trans-Tasman
Convergence Project and to reduce
disclosure requirements for entities
preparing general purpose financial
statements under Australian
Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements.

1 July 2013 The Victorian Government
is currently considering the
impacts of Reduced Disclosure
Requirements (RDRs) for certain
public sector entities and has
not decided if RDRs will be
implemented in the Victorian
public sector.
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Standard/ Interpretation
Impact on public sector

entity financial statements

Applicable for annual
reporting periods

beginning on
Summary

AASB 2011-3 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards -
Orderly Adoption of Changes to
the ABS GFS Manual and Related
Amendments [AASB 1049]

This amends AASB 1049 to
clarify the definition of the ABS
GFS Manual, and to facilitate the
adoption of changes to the ABS
GFS Manual and related
disclosures. 

1 July 2012 This amendment provides
clarification to users preparing the
whole of government and general
govovernment sector financial
reports on the version of the GFS
Manual to be used and what to
disclose if the latest GFS Manual
is not used.  
No impact on departmental or
entity reporting.

AASB 2011-4 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
to Remove Individual Key
Management Personnel
Disclosure Requirements
[AASB 124]

This Standard amends AASB 124
Related Party Disclosures by
removing the disclosure
requirements in AASB 124
in relation to individual key
management personnel (KMP).

1 July 2013 No significant impact is expected
from these consequential
amendments on entity reporting.  

AASB 2011-6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards -
Extending Relief from Consolidation,
the Equity Method and
Proportionate Consolidation -
Reduced Disclosure Requirements
[AASB 127, AASB 128 & AASB
131]

The objective of this Standard is
to make amendments to AASB
127 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements, AASB 128
Investments in Associates
and AASB 131 Interests in
Joint Ventures to extend the
circumstances in which an entity
can obtain relief from consolidation,
the equity method or proportionate
consolidation.

1 July 2013 The Victorian Government is
currently considering the
impacts of Reduced Disclosure
Requirements (RDRs) and has
not decided if RDRs will be
implemented in the Victorian
public sector.

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from the Consolidation and
Joint Arrangements Standards
[AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11,
101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132,
133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038
and Interpretations 5, 9, 16 & 17]

This Standard outlines
consequential changes arising
from the issuance of the five ‘new
Standards’ to other Standards.
For example, references to AASB
127 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements are amended
to AASB 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements or AASB 127 Separate
Financial Statements, and
references to AASB 131 Interests
in Joint Ventures are deleted as
that Standard has been
superseded by AASB 11
and AASB 128 (August 2011).

1 Jan 2013 No significant impact is expected
from these consequential
amendments on entity reporting.  

AASB 2011-8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2,
3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101,
102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119,
120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134,
136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004,
1023 & 1038 and Interpretations
2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This amending Standard makes
consequentical changes to a range
of Standards and Interpretations
arising from the issuance of AASB
13. In particular, this Standard
replaces the existing definition
and guidance of fair value
measurements in other Australian
Accounting Standards and
Interpretations.

1 Jan 2013 Disclosures for fair value
measurements using unobservable
inputs is potentially onerous, and
may increase disclosures for
assets measured using
depreciated replacement cost.
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Standard/ Interpretation
Impact on public sector

entity financial statements

Applicable for annual
reporting periods

beginning on
Summary

AASB 2011-9
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards -
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income [AASB 1,
5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133,
134, 1039 & 1049]

The main change resulting from
this Standard is a requirement for
entities to group items presented in
other comprehensive income (OCI)
on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or
loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). These amendments
do not remove the option to
present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in two
statements, nor change the option
to present items of OCI either
before tax or net of tax.

1 July 2012 This amending Standard could
change the current presentation
of ‘Other economic flows - other
movements in equity’ that will be
grouped on the basis of whether
they are potentially reclassifiable
to profit or loss subsequently.
No other significant impact will be
expected.

AASB 2011-10 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 119 (September
2011) [AASB 1, AASB 8, AASB 101,
AASB 124, AASB 134, AASB
1049 & AASB 2011-8 and
Interpretation 14]

This Standard makes consequential
changes to a range of other
Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretaion arising from the
issuance of AASB 119 Employee
Benefits. 

1 Jan 2013 No significant impact is expected
from these consequential
amendments on entity reporting.  

AASB 2011-11 Amendments to
AASB 119 (September 2011)
arising from Reduced Disclosure
Requirements

This Standard makes amendments
to AASB 119 Employee Benefits
(September 2011), to incorporate
reduced disclosure requirements
into the Standard for entities
applying Tier 2 requirements
in preparing general purpose
financial statements.

1 July 2013 The Victorian Government is
currently considering the
impacts of Reduced Disclosure
Requirements (RDRs) and has
not decided if RDRs will be
implemented in the Victorian
public sector.

AASB 2011-12 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
arising from Interpretation 20
[AASB 1]

This Standard makes amendments
to AASB 1 First-time Adoption of
Australian Accounting Standards,
as a consequence of the issuance
of IFRIC Interpretation 20 Stripping
Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine. This Standard
allows the first-time adopters to
apply the transitional provisions
contained in Interpretation 20. 

1 Jan 2013 There may be an impact for new
agencies that adopt Australian
Accounting Standards for the
first time. 
No implication is expected for
existing entities in the Victorian
public sector.

2011-13 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standard -
Improvements to AASB 1049

This Standard aims to improve the
AASB 1049 Whole of Government
and General Government Sector
Financial Reporting at the
operational level. The main
amendments clarify a number
of requirements in AASB 1049,
including the amendment to allow
disclosure of other measures of
key fiscal aggregates as long as
they are clearly distinguished
from the key fiscal aggregates
and do not detract from the the
information required by AASB
1049. Furthermore, this Standard
provides additional guidance and
examples on the classification
between ‘transactions’ and ‘other
economic flows’ for GAAP items
without GFS equivalents.

1 July 2012 No significant impact is expected
from these consequential
amendments on entity reporting.
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Standard/ Interpretation
Impact on public sector

entity financial statements

Applicable for annual
reporting periods

beginning on
Summary

2012-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Fair Value
Measurement - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [AASB 3,
AASB 7, AASB 13, AASB 140 &
AASB 141]

This amending Standard
prescribes the reduced disclosure
requirements in a number of
Australian Accounting Standards as
a consequence of the issuance of
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement.

1 July 2013 As the Victorian whole of
government and the general
government (GG) sector are
subject to Tier 1 reporting
requirements (refer to AASB 1053
Application of Tiers of Australian
Accounting Standards), the
reduced disclosure requirements
included in AASB 2012-1 will not
affect the financial reporting for
Victorian whole of government
and GG sector.

AASB Interpretation 20 Stripping
Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

This Interpretation clarifies when
production stripping costs should
lead to the recognition of an asset
and how that asset should be
initially and subsequently
measured.

1 Jan 2013 No significant impact is expected
on entity reporting.

(r) Category Groups
The Group has used the following category groups for reporting purposes for the current and previous financial
years.
Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure on admitted
patient services, where services are delivered in public hospitals, or free standing day hospital facilities, or alcohol
and drug treatment units or hospitals specialising in dental services, hearing and ophthalmic aids.
Outpatient Services (Outpatients) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure on public hospital type
outpatient services, where services are delivered in public hospital outpatient clinics, or free standing day hospital
facilities, or rehabilitation facilities, or alcohol and drug treatment units, or outpatient clinics specialising in ophthalmic
aids or palliative care.
Emergency Department Services (EDS) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure on emergency
department services that are available free of charge to public patients.
Aged Care comprises revenue/expenditure form Home and Community Care (HACC) programs, Allied Health,
Aged Care Assessment and support services.
Primary Health comprises revenue/expenditure for Community Health Services including health promotion and
counselling, physiotherapy, speech therapy, podiatry and occupational therapy.
Off Campus, Ambulatory Services (Ambulatory) comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure on public
hospital type services including palliative care facilities and rehabilitation facilities, as well as services provided
under the following agreements: Services that are provided or received by hospitals (or area health services) but
are delivered/received outside a hospital campus, services which have moved from a hospital to a community
setting since June 1998, services which fall within the agreed scope of inclusions under the new system, which
have been delivered within hospital’s i.e. in rural/remote areas.
Residential Aged Care including Mental Health (RAC incl. Mental Health) referred to in the past as psychogeriatric
residential services, comprises those Commonwealth-licensed residential aged care services in receipt of
supplementary funding from DH under the mental health program. It excludes all other residential services funded
under the mental health program, such as mental health funded community care units (CCUs) and secure extended
care units (SECs).
Other Services excluded from Australian Health Care Agreement (AHCA) (Other) comprises revenue/expenditure
for services not separately classified above, including: Public Health Services including Laboratory testing, Blood
Borne Viruses / Sexually Transmitted Infections clinical services, Kooris liaison officers, immunisation and screening
services, Drugs services including drug withdrawal, counselling and the needle and syringe program, Dental Health
services including general and specialist dental care, school dental services and clinical education, Disability services
including aids and equipment and flexible support packages to people with a disability, Community Care programs
including sexual assault support, early parenting services, parenting assessment and skills development, and various
support services. Health and Community Initiatives also falls in this category group.
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Note 2: Revenue

Revenue from Operating Activities
Government Grants

- Department of Health 51,402 48,015 - - 51,402 48,015
- Department of Human Services 251 - - - 251 -
- State Government - Other 99 266 - - 99 266
- Commonwealth Government

- Residential Aged Care Subsidy 5,175 4,584 - - 5,175 4,584
- Other 1,309 982 - - 1,309 982

Total Government Grants 58,236 53,847 - - 58,236 53,847
Indirect Contributions by Department of Health

- Insurance 114 1,194 - - 114 1,194
- Long Service Leave 72 (281) - - 72 (281)

Total Indirect Contributions by Department of Health 186 913 - - 186 913
Patient and Resident Fees 

- Patient and Resident Fees (refer note 2b) 620 503 - - 620 503
- Residential Aged Care (refer note 2b) 1,720 1,747 - - 1,720 1,747

Total Patient & Resident Fees 2,340 2,250 - - 2,340 2,250
Commercial Activities & Specific Purpose Funds

- Private Practice and Other Patient Activities Fees - - 107 136 107 136
- Pharmacy Services 202 161 - - 202 161
- Laundry - - 11,705 11,600 11,705 11,600
- Cafeteria - - 475 466 475 466
- Property Income 502 491 - - 502 491
- Other (Salary Packaging) 135 126 - - 135 126

Total Commercial Activities & Specific Purpose Funds 839 778 12,287 12,202 13,126 12,980
Other Revenue from Operating Activities 385 347 - - 385 347

Total Revenue from Operating Activities 61,986 58,135 12,287 12,202 74,273 70,337

Revenue from Non-Operating Activities
Interest & Dividends - - 876 860 876 860
Other Revenue from Non-Operating Activities - - 1,930 2,204 1,930 2,204
Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities - - 2,806 3,064 2,806 3,064

Capital Purpose Income
State Government Capital Grants

- Targeted Capital Works and Equipment 912 2,777 - - 912 2,777
- Other 165 108 - - 165 108

Residential Accommodation Payments (refer note 2b) 625 739 - - 625 739
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal
of Non-Financial Assets (refer note 2c) - - 27 (97) 27 (97)
Assets Received Free of Charge (refer note 2d) - - 200 250 200 250
Capital Dividends - - 10 17 10 17
Donations & Bequests - - 523 1,022 523 1,022
Other Capital Purpose Income - - 139 - 139 -
Total Capital Purpose Income 1,702 3,624 899 1,192 2,601 4,816
Total Revenue (refer to note 2a) 63,688 61,759 15,992 16,458 79,680 78,217

Indirect contributions by Department of Health: Department of Health makes certain payments on behalf of the Health
Service. These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording
them as revenue and expenses.
This note relates to revenues above the net result line only, and does not reconcile to comprehensive income

HSA HSA H&CI H&CI Total Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Patient and Resident Fees

Acute (incl rehabilitation, GEM and other acute care types)
- Inpatients 83 39
- Outpatients 333 201

Residential Aged Care
- Residential Accommodation Payments 1,720 1,747

Aged Care
- Outpatients 165 213

Other 39 50
Total Patient and Resident Fees 2,340 2,250

Capital Purpose Income:

Residential Accommodation Payments 625 739
Total Capital Purpose Income 625 739

Note 2b: Private and Resident Fees

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Proceeds from Disposals of Non-Current Assets

Plant and Equipment 58 9
Motor Vehicles 139 233

Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets 197 242

Less: Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold

Medical Equipment 8 -
Plant & Equipment 162 339

Total Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold 170 339

Net gain/(loss) on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets 27 (97)

Note 2c: Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

During the reporting period, the fair value of assets received free of charge, was as follows:

Building refurbishment 200 250

TOTAL 200 250

Monash University provided funding received direct from DH for the refurbishment of Mary Sargeant lecture room,
paediatric & physicians rooms. West Gippsland Healthcare Group made a significant contribution to the project costs.

Note 2d: Assets Received Free of Charge or For Nominal Consideration
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Note 3: Expenses

Employee Expenses

Salaries & Wages 39,267 36,575 7,745 7,235 47,012 43,810
WorkCover Premium 1,388 1,332 302 173 1,690 1,505
Departure Packages 4 2 - 5 4 7
Long Service Leave 1,221 882 112 97 1,333 979
Superannuation 3,513 3,363 698 687 4,211 4,050
Total Employee Expenses 45,393 42,154 8,857 8,197 54,250 50,351

Non Salary Labour Costs

Fees for Visiting Medical Officers 3,772 4,240 - - 3,772 4,240
Agency Costs - Other 1,449 884 - - 1,449 884
Total Non Salary Labour Costs 5,221 5,124 - - 5,221 5,124

Supplies & Consumables

Drug Supplies 1,675 1,610 - - 1,675 1,610
S100 Drugs 462 450 - - 462 450
Medical, Surgical Supplies and Prosthesis 2,729 2,636 127 112 2,856 2,748
Pathology Supplies 663 541 3 3 666 544
Radiology 1,591 1,326 1 2 1,592 1,328
Food Supplies 792 755 227 227 1,019 982
Total Supplies & Consumables 7,912 7,318 358 344 8,270 7,662

Other Expenses

Domestic Services & Supplies 361 330 444 398 805 728
Fuel, Light, Power and Water 454 497 662 642 1,116 1,139
Insurance costs funded by the Department of Health 1,385 1,194 - - 1,385 1,194
Linen production/transport costs - - 253 218 253 218
Motor Vehicle Expenses 166 166 254 218 420 384
Repairs & Maintenance 566 555 141 275 707 830
Maintenance Contracts 257 248 18 20 275 268
Patient Transport 993 723 - - 993 723
Bad & Doubtful Debts 39 32 11 - 50 32
Lease Expenses 11 - - - 11 -
Advertising Expenses 13 11 - - 13 11
Other Administrative Expenses 3,668 3,699 341 909 4,009 4,608
Other  501 18 47 81 548 99
Audit Fees
- VAGO - Audit of Financial Statements 36 40 - - 36 40
- Other 30 20 - - 30 20

Total Other Expenses 8,480 7,533 2,171 2,761 10,651 10,294

Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income

- Other expenses - 270 169 102 169 372
Total Other Expenses - 270 169 102 169 372

Total Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income - 270 169 102 169 372

Depreciation & Amortisation 4,148 4,176 1,605 1,628 5,753 5,804
Total Impairment of Assets 4,148 4,176 1,605 1,628 5,753 5,804
Total Expenses 71,154 66,575 13,160 13,032 84,314 79,607

This note relates to revenues above the net result line only, and does not reconcile to comprehensive income.

HSA HSA H&CI H&CI Total Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Depreciation

Buildings 3,346 3,240
Plant & Equipment 1,965 2,143
Medical Equipment 442 421

Total Depreciation 5,753 5,804

Note 4: Depreciation and Amortisation

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Cash on Hand 3 3
Cash at Bank 5,890 5,775
Bank Overdrafts (2,223) (2,279)
Deposits at Call 7,943 9,434
GHA 560 480

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,173 13,413

Represented by:

Cash for Health Service Operations (as per Cash Flow Statement) 12,173 13,413

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,173 13,413

Note 5: Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and in banks, and short-term
deposits which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Note 6: Receivables

CURRENT

Contractual

Inter Hospital Debtors 742 513
Trade Debtors 867 1,442
Patient Fees 198 195
GHA 222 115
Accrued Investment Income 134 106
Accrued Revenue - Other 81 343
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Trade Debtors (41) (3)
Patient Fees (15) (28)

2,188 2,683

Statutory

GST Receivable 184 1,017
Department of Health 260 -

444 1,017

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 2,632 3,700

NON CURRENT

Statutory

Long Service Leave - Department of Health 456 384

TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 456 384

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 3,088 4,084

(a) Movement in the Allowance for doubtful debts

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of year (31) (23)
Amounts written off during the year (51) (16)
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in net result 26 8

Balance at end of year (56) (31)

(b) Ageing analysis of receivables

Please refer to note 16(b) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables

(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables

Please refer to note 16(b) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables
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Operating Fund Specific Purpose Fund Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

CURRENT

Term Deposit
Aust. Dollar Term Deposits > 3 months - - 3,346 2,594 3,346 2,594
Others > 3 months - Salary Packaging - - 312 349 312 349

Total Current - - 3,658 2,943 3,658 2,943

NON CURRENT

Equities and Managed Investment Schemes
Australian Listed Equity Securities 90 90 - - 90 90

Total Non Current 90 90 - - 90 90

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 90 90 3,658 2,943 3,748 3,033

Represented by:

Health Service Investments 90 90 - - 90 90
Monies Held in Trust

Patient Monies - - 3,658 2,943 3,658 2,943

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 90 90 3,658 2,943 3,748 3,033

(b) Ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 16(b) for the ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets

(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 16(b) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from investments and other financial assets

Note 7: Investments and Other Financial Assets

Pharmaceuticals
At cost 118 122

Housekeeping Supplies
At cost 5 6

Medical and Surgical Lines
At cost 92 108

Administration Stores
At Cost 29 33

Linen Service Housekeeping Supplies
At Cost - 9

TOTAL INVENTORIES 244 278

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Note 8: Inventories

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Prepayments 118 134
GHA 47 69
Other 9 -

CURRENT 174 203

TOTAL 174 203

Note 9: Other Current Assets
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Note 10: Property, Plant & Equipment 2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Land
Land at Fair Value 7,171 7,171

Total Land 7,171 7,171

Assets Under Construction
Buildings Under Construction at cost 1,711 256
Buildings
Buildings at Fair Value 51,392 51,392

Less Acc'd Depreciation 10,211 6,885
Buildings at Cost 783 783

Less Acc'd Depreciation 36 17

Total Buildings 41,928 45,273

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment at Fair Value 16,010 15,052

Less Acc'd Depreciation 7,297 6,884

Total Plant and Equipment 8,713 8,168

Medical Equipment
Medical Equipment at Fair Value 6,529 5,936

Less Acc'd Depreciation 2,554 2,126

Total Medical Equipment 3,975 3,810

GHA
Written Down Value 19 31

Total GHA 19 31

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 63,517 64,709

Land Buildings Plant Medical Assets Total
& Equipment Under

Equipment Construction
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2010 6,532 48,195 8,394 3,906 32 67,059

Additions - 287 2,209 402 256 3,154
Disposals - - (261) (77) - (338)
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements) 639 - - - - 639
Net Transfers between Classes - 32 - - (32) -
Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4) - (3,241) (2,143) (421) - (5,805)

Balance at 1 July 2011 7,171 45,273 8,199 3,810 256 64,709

Additions - 225 2,567 615 1,324 4,731
Disposals - - (162) (8) - (170)
Net Transfers between Classes - (224) 93 - 131 -
Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4) - (3,346) (1,965) (442) - (5,753)

Balance at 30 June 2012 7,171 41,928 8,732 3,975 1,711 63,517

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset for the consolidated entity at the beginning and
end of the previous and current financial year is set out below.

Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of the Health Service's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to
determine the fair value of the land and buildings. The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards,
was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments. 
The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2009
In addition, a Managerial review was performed on land in accordance with FRD103D at 30 June 2011 using indices
provided by the Valuer-General. As a consequence of this review, land was revalued as at 30 June 2011.
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Note 11: Payables 2012 2011
$’000 $’000

CURRENT

Contractual
Trade Creditors - Hospital 1,752 2,051

- GHA 26 77
Accrued Expenses - Hospital 937 298

- GHA 83 33
Other - Hospital - 12

- GHA 177 84
2,975 2,555

Statutory
GST Payable 95 896
Department of Health 53 471
FBT 28 17

176 1,384
TOTAL CURRENT 3,151 3,939

(a) Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 16(c) for the ageing analysis of contractual payables

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from payables
Please refer to Note 16(c) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables

Note 12: Provisions 2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Current Provisions

Employee Benefits  
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 13,050 11,398

13,050 11,398
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs

- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 318 377
318 377

Total Current Provisions 13,368 11,775

Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits 1,391 1,053
Total Non-Current Provisions 1,391 1,053

Total Provisions 14,759 12,828

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs

Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional LSL Entitlement 6,585 6,207
Annual Leave Entitlements 4,260 3,874
Accrued Wages and Salaries 2,439 1,255
Accrued Days Off 84 62
Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 1,391 1,430
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 14,759 12,828

(b) Movements in provisions

Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year 7,260 6,903
Provision made during the year 1,420 1,003
Settlement made during year (704) (646)
Balance at end of year 7,976 7,260
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Note 13: Other Liabilities
2012 2011
$’000 $’000

CURRENT

Monies Held in Trust
- Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees) 3,346 2,594
- Salary Packaging 312 349

Total Current 3,658 2,943

Total Other Liabilities 3,658 2,943

Total Monies Held in Trust

Represented by the following assets:

Other Financial Assets (refer to Note 7) 3,658 2,943

TOTAL 3,658 2,943

Note 14: Equity
2012 2011
$’000 $’000

(a)  Surpluses

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus1

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 27,466 26,827
Revaluation Increment/(Decrements)
- Land - 639

Balance at the end of the reporting period* 27,466 27,466

* Represented by: 
- Land 4,915 4,915
- Buildings 22,551 22,551

27,466 27,466

(b)  Contributed Capital

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 32,522 32,522

Balance at the end of the reporting period 32,522 32,522

(c)  Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 6,022 7,412
Net Result for the Year (4,634) (1,390)

Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,388 6,022

Total Equity at end of financial year 61,376 66,010

(1)The property, plant & equipment asset revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of property, plant & equipment.
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Note 15: Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Net Result for the Year (4,634) (1,390)

Depreciation & Amortisation 5,753 5,804
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 31
Net (Gain)/Loss from Disposal of Non Financial Physical Assets (27) 97
Resources/Assets Received Free of Charge (200) -
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 996 (143)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 29 31
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables (788) 532
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 1,931 597
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities - 299
Change in Inventories 34 3

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,094 5,862

Note 16: Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
West Gippsland Healthcare Group's principal financial instruments comprise of:

-  Cash Assets
-  Term Deposits
-  Receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
-  Investment in Equities and Managed Investment Schemes
-  Payables (excluding statutory payables)
-  Accommodation Bonds

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial
asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage West Gippsland Healthcare Group's
financial risks within the government policy parameters.
Categorisation of financial instruments

Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 12,173 13,413
Loans and Receivables 5,846 5,626
Available for Sale 90 90

Total Financial Assets(i) 18,109 19,129

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost 6,633 5,498

Total Financial Liabilities(ii) 6,633 5,498

(i) The total amount of financial assets disclosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST input tax credit recoverable)
(ii) The total amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. Taxes payable)
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Net holding Carrying
gain/(loss) Amount

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents(i) 876 860
Available for Sale(i) 10 17

Total Financial Assets 886 877

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, loans or receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is
calculated by taking the movement in the fair value of the asset, interest revenue, plus or minus foreign exchange
gains or losses arising from revaluation of the financial assets, and minus any impairment recognised in the net
result;

(ii) For financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest expense,
plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from the revaluation of financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost; and

Note 16: Financial Instruments (continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category
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Financial Financial Other
Institutions Institutions Companies (min BBB
(A credit (BBB+ credit (A-1 credit credit
rating) rating) rating) rating) Total

2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,201 4,972 - - 12,173
Receivables

- Trade Debtors - - - 2,188 2,188
Other Financial Assets

- Term Deposit 3,658 - - - 3,658
- Shares in Other Entities - - 90 - 90

Total Financial Assets 10,859 4,972 90 2,188 18,109

2011

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,002 6,411 - - 13,413
Receivables

- Trade Debtors - - - 2,683 2,683
Other Financial Assets

- Term Deposit 2,943 - - - 2,943
- Shares in Other Entities - - 90 - 90

Total Financial Assets 9,945 6,411 90 2,683 19,129

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government
and GST input tax credit recoverable).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and deposits, non-statutory
receivables and available for sale contractual financial assets. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the
potential default of a counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk
is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.

Credit risk associated with the Group’s contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian
Government. For debtors other than the Government, it is the Group’s policy to only deal with entities with high credit
ratings of a minimum Triple-B rating and to obtain sufficient collateral or credit enhancements, where appropriate.
In addition, the Group does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual
financial assets that are on fixed interest, except for cash assets, which are mainly cash at bank. As with the policy for
debtors, the Group’s policy is to only deal with banks with high credit ratings.

Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Health
Service will not be able to collect a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default
payments, debts which are more than 60 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.

Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the
financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents West Gippsland Healthcare Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
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Note 16: Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Ageing analysis of Financial Assets as at 30 June

Not Past
Consol’d Due and Impaired
Carrying Not Less than 1-3 3 Months Financial
Amount Impaired 1 Month Months - 1 Year 1-5 years Assets

2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,173 12,173 - - - - -
Receivables (i)

- Trade Debtors 2,188 2,188 - - - - -
Other Financial Assets

- Term Deposit 3,658 3,658
- Shares in Other Entities 90 90 - - - - -

Total Financial Assets 18,109 18,109 - - - - -

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,413 13,413 - - - - -
Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors 2,683 2,683 - - - - -
Other Financial Assets
- Term Deposit 2,943 2,943
- Shares in Other Entities 90 90 - - - - -

Total Financial Assets 19,129 19,129 - - - - -

(i) Ageing analysis of financial assets must exclude the types of statutory financial assets (i.e GST input tax credit)
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired. Currently West Gippsland
Healthcare Group does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to any of its financial
assets.
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or
impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The ageing analysis table above discloses the
ageing only of contractual financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

Past Due But Not impaired
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Carrying Contractual Less than 1-3 3 Months
Amount Cash Flows 1 Month Months - 1 Year 1-5 years

2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial Liabilities

Payables 2,975 2,975 2,975 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds 3,346 3,346 - - 3,346 -
- Other 312 312 - - 312 -

Total Financial Liabilities 6,633 6,633 2,975 - 3,658 -

2011

Financial Liabilities

Payables 2,555 2,555 2,555 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds 2,594 2,594 - - 2,594 -
- Other 349 349 349 - - -

Total Financial Liabilities 5,498 5,498 2,904 - 2,594 -

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable)

Maturity Dates

Note 16: Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Health Service would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due. 
The Health Service’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in
the face of the balance sheet. The Health Service manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that term deposit maturity
dates are spaced for regular access to cash when required.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for West Gippsland Healthccare Group's financial
liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.

Maturity analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June



80

West Gippsland Healthcare Group 2011/12
Notes to the Financial Statements

(d) Market risk
West Gippsland Healthcare Group's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only
insignificant exposure to foreign currency and other price risks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage
each of these risks are disclosed in the paragraph below.
Currency risk
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating to
purchases of supplies and consumables from overseas. This is because of a limited amount of purchases denominated
in foreign currencies and a short timeframe between commitment and settlement.
Interest rate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through West Gippsland Healthcare Group's interest bearing liabilities.
Minimisation of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments. For
financial liabilities, the health service mainly undertake financial liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.
Interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June

Weighted
Average Fixed Variable Non-
Effective Carrying Interest Interest Interest
Interest Amount Rate Rate Bearing

2012 Rate (%) $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.29 12,173 7,253 4,920 -
Receivables(i)

- Trade Debtors - 1,609 - - 1,609
- Other Receivables - 579 - - 579

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities - 90 - - 90
- Term Deposits 5.29 3,658 3,658 - -

18,109 10,911 4,920 2,278

Financial Liabilities
Payables(i) - 2,975 - - 2,975
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation Bonds - 3,346 - - 3,346
- Other - 312 - - 312

6,633 - - 6,633

2011

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.89 13,413 8,875 4,538 -
Receivables(i)

- Trade Debtors - 1,952 - - 1,952
- Other Receivables - 731 - - 731

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities - 90 - - 90
- Term Deposits 5.89 2,943 2,943 - -

19,129 11,818 4,538 2,773

Financial Liabilities
Payables(i) - 2,555 - - 2,555
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation Bonds - 2,594 - - 2,594
- Other - 349 - - 349

5,498 - - 5,498

(i)The carrying amount must exclude types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST
payable)

Interest Rate Exposure
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Carrying -1% +1%
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents - at fixed interest 7,253 - - - -
- at variable interest 4,920 (49) (49) 49 49

Receivables
- Trade Debtors 1,609 - - - -
- Other Receivables 579 - - - -

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities 90 - - - -
- Term Deposits 3,658 - - - -

Financial Liabilities

Payables 2,975 - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation Bonds 3,346 - - - -

- Other 312 - - - -

(49) (49) 49 49

2011

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents - at fixed interest 8,875 - - - -
- at variable interest 4,538 (45) (45) 45 45

Receivables
- Trade Debtors 1,952 - - - -
- Other Receivables 731 - - - -

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities 90 - - - -
- Term Deposits 2,594 - - - -

Financial Liabilities

Payables 2,555 - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation Bonds 2,594 - - - -
- Other 349 - - - -

(45) (45) 45 45

Interest Rate Risk

Note 16: Financial Instruments (continued)

(d) Market Risk (continued)

Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge
and experience of the financial markets, West Gippsland Healthcare Group believes the following movements are
'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rates are sourced from the Westpac Bank).
- A shift of +1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 6%
The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument
held by West Gippsland Healthcare Group  at year end as presented to key management personnel, if changes in
the relevant risk occur.
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Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,173 12,173 13,413 13,413
Receivables

- Trade Debtors 1,609 1,609 1,952 1,952
- Other Receivables 579 579 731 731

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities 90 90 90 90
- Term Deposits 3,658 3,658 2,943 2,943

Total Financial Assets 18,109 18,109 19,129 19,129

Financial Liabilities

Payables 2,975 2,975 2,555 2,555
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation Bonds 3,346 3,346 2,594 2,594
- Other 312 312 349 349

Total Financial Liabilities 6,633 6,633 5,498 5,498

Consol’d Consol’d
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

2012 2012 2011 2011
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Note 16: Financial Instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows:
� Level 1 - the fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets

are determined with reference to quoted market prices;
� Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
� Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted

cash flow analysis using unobservable market inputs.
The Group considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in the financial
statements to be a fair approximation of their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments
and the expectation that they will be paid in full.
The following table shows that the fair values of most of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the same as
the carrying amounts. 

Comparison between carrying amount and fair value
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2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Capital expenditure commitments

Payable:
Land and Buildings 1,639 4,125

Total capital expenditure commitments 1,639 4,125

Land and Buildings
Not later than one year 1,639 4,125

Total 1,639 4,125

Operating Leases

(Include a general description of operating lease arrangements) payable as follows:
Cancellable
Not later than one year 40 -
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 147 -

TOTAL LEASE COMMITMENTS 187 -

Total Commitments (inclusive of GST) 1,826 4,125

less GST recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (166) (375)

Total Commitments (exclusive of GST) 1,660 3,750

All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.

Note 17: Commitments

Note 18: Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Note 16: Financial Instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value (continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss

Available for sale financial assets
- Equities and managed funds 90 90 - -

Total Financial Assets 90 90 - -

2011

Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss

Available for sale financial assets
- Equities and managed funds 90 90 - -

Total Financial Assets 90 90 - -

Carrying
Amount

as at
30 June Level 1* Level 2* Level 3*

2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Fair value measurement at end
of reporting period using:

There were no contingent assets or contigent liabilities for the year ended 30 June 2012.
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Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 560 480
Receivables 222 115
Other Current Assets 47 69

Total Current Assets 829 664

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 19 31

Total Non Current Assets 19 31

Total Assets 848 695

Current Liabilities
Payables 109 109
Other Current Liabilities 177 84

Total Current Liabilities 286 193

Total Liabilities 286 193

Net Assets 562 502

Reconciliation of jointly controlled assets:

Share of funds at beginning of report 503 600
Contributions made in current reporting period 977 853
Share of current year surplus/(deficit) (917) (950)

Share of funds at end of reporting period 563 503

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Revenues
GHA Revenue 250 164

Total Revenue 250 164

Expenses

Information Technology and Administrative Expenses 1,160 1,103
Depreciation 7 11

Total Expenses 1,167 1,114

Net result (917) (950)

2012 2011
$’000 $’000

Note 20: Jointly Controlled Assets

Ownership Interest
2012 2011

Name of Entity Principal Activity % %

Gippsland Health Alliance Information Technology 14.20 14.13
Published fair value ($‘000) 3,207 2,786

During 2009/10 the Alliance members signed a new agreement, which was effective 1 July 2009, which determines
the interest in the Gippsland Health Alliance as a "jointly controlled asset". Accounting for a 'jointly controlled asset'
requires the member health service to now recognise  its share of the Alliance's assets and liabilities, together with
any income and expenditure arising, under the respective line item in the member health service's financial
statements from the year ending 30 June 2010 onwards.
West Gippsland Healthcare Group's interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled assets is detailed
below. The amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories:

West Gippsland Healthcare Group's interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and
assets is detailed below: 

West Gippsland Healthcare Group 2011/12
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 21a: Responsible Persons Disclosures

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act
1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

Period
Responsible Ministers
The Honourable David Davis, MP, Minister for Health and Ageing 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
The Honourable Mary Wooldridge, MLA, Minister for Mental Health 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Governing Boards
Mr J Anderson 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Ms J Campbell 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mrs L Coupland 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr B Davey 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr J Davine 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr P Kingwill 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr P Marx 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Ms M Robbins 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr B Rogers 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr D Smith 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr N Voll 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Mr A Wolfe 1/7/2011 - 30/6/2012
Responsible Persons
Mr O Pearson 1/07/2011 - 3/11/2011
Mr D Weeks 14/11/2011 - 30/6/2012

Income Band

$0 - $9,999 11 11
$140,000 - $149,999 1 -
$230,000 - $239,999 - 1
$250,000 - $259,999 1 -
Total Numbers 13 12

The Board of Directors are honorary (non-paid) directors

2012 2011
No. No.

Remuneration of Responsible Persons

The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands;

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements
of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties $'000 $'000

Mr P Kingwill is a shareholder of both Sage Computer Support Pty Ltd and Viatek Sage IT
Services Pty Ltd which provide information technology hardware and software to
West Gippsland Healthcare Group 9 10

Mr D Smith is a trustee of the Andrews Foundation which makes donations to
West Gippsland Healthcare Group - 500

Mr D Smith is a partner of Smith McCarthy Wilson who act as agents for the Bendigo Bank.
Smith McCarthy Wilson receive commisions on some of the deposits with Bendigo Bank.
No commissions are received on deposits held with the Bendigo (Community) Bank and
interest rates achieved are not reduced by any commissions. - -

West Gippsland Healthcare Group 2011/12
Notes to the Financial Statements
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$70,000 - $79,999 2 - - -
$80,000 - $89,999 - - - -
$90,000 - $99,999 - - - 1
$100,000 - $109,999 - - 1 -
$110,000 - $119,999 - 1 3 2
$120,000 - $129,999 1 - 1 1
$130,000 - $139,999 1 2 - -
$140,000 – $149,999 1 1 - -
$150,000 – $159,999 - 1 - -
$160,000 – $169,999 - - - -
$170,000 – $179,999 - - 1 1
$180,000 – $189,999 - - - -
$190,000 – $199,999 1 - - -
$200,000 – $209,999 - - - -
Total number of executives 6 5 6 5

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) 4.90 5.00 4.90 5.00

Total Remuneration $747,309 $686,363 $659,544 $621,894

Total Remuneration Base Remuneration
2012 No. 2011 No. 2012 No. 2011 No.

Note 21b: Executive Officer Disclosures

Executive Officers' Remuneration

The numbers of executive officers and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the first two
columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive officers is shown in
the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments,
redundancy payments and retirement benefits. The total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of
full-time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.
Several factors have affected the total remuneration payable to executives over the year. A number of employment
contracts were completed during the year and renegotiated and a number of executives received bonus payments
during the year. These bonus payments depend of the terms of individual employment contracts. Some contracts
provide for an annual bonus payment whereas other contracts only include thepayments of bonuses on the
successful completion of the full term of the contract. A number of these contract completion bonuses became
payable during the year.
A number of executive officers retired or resigned in the past year. This has had a significant impact on total
remuneration figures due to the inclusion of annual leave, long-service leave and retrenchment payments.

Note 22: Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
There were no significant events occuring after balance date for the year ended 30 June 2012.

Note 23: Economic Dependency
West Gippsland Healthcare Group is wholly dependent on the continual financial support of the State Government
and in particular, the Department of Health.

West Gippsland Healthcare Group 2011/12
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Board member’s, accountable officer’s and chief finance & accounting officer’s declaration

We certify that the attached financial report for West Gippsland Healthcare Group have been prepared in
accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting
Directions, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement,
balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes to and forming part of the
financial statements, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2012 and the
financial position of West Gippsland Healthcare Group at 30 June 2012.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included
in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We authorise the attached financial report for issue on this day.

Joanne Campbell
Board Member

Warragul
6 September 2012

Daniel Weeks
Accountable Officer

Warragul
6 September 2012

Justin Walsh
Chief Finance & Accounting
Officer

Warragul
6 September 2012

Financial: Certification
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Financial: Auditor General’s Report
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Financial: Auditor General’s Report
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Best Practice Identifying and matching the best performance of others
Business Plan a plan designed to meet the broad Key Result Areas to

implement the Mission which provides the unique reason for
the organisation’s existence

Inpatient A person who undergoes the Group’s formal admission
process and meets the admission criteria

Outpatient A non-admitted person who does not undergo the Group’s
formal admission process

Performance Indicators a measure of quality, quantity, cost or timeliness used to
assess the production or delivery of service or outcomes
achievement.

ACHS Australian Council on Healthcare Standards
BOD Board of Directors
CDAMS Cognitive Dementia and Memory Service
CEO Chief Executive Officer
CRC Community Rehabilitation Centre
CWDGP Central West Division of General Practice
CWGPCP Central West Gippsland Primary Care Partnership
DH Department of Health
DHS Department of Human Services
DNS District Nursing Service
DOCS Director of Community Services
EEO Equal Employment Opportunity
EFT Equivalent Full Time
EQuIP Evaluation and Quality Improvement Program
FBT Fringe Benefits Tax
GEM Geriatric Evaluation and Management
GHA Gippsland Health Alliance
GP General Practitioner
GST Goods & Services Tax
HACC Health and Community Care
HITH Hospital in the Home
ICT Information Communications and Technology
IP Internet Protocol
ISO International Standards of Operation
IT Information Technology
LAN Local Area Network
LOS Length of Stay in an acute bed
MURCS Monash University Rural Clinical School
OH&S Occupational Health and Safety
PAC Post Acute Care
VICNISS Victorian Hospital Acquired Infection Surveillance System
WAN Wide Area Network
WGH West Gippsland Hospital
WGHG West Gippsland Healthcare Group
WIES Weighted Inlier Evaluation Separations: every patient

discharged from WGHG is allocated a Diagnostic Related
Group (DRG) which reflects the primary reason for the
patient’s episode of care. The DRG has an assigned
resource weight that relates to the complexity of the patient’s
medical condition upon which the WIES is calculated.

WLS Warragul Linen Service
The Group West Gippsland Healthcare Group

Glossary
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Comments and Complaints:
We invite any comment you may have about the care or service provided by West Gippsland Healthcare Group as this provides
an opportunity for service improvement. Comments or complaints may be directed to the Chief Executive Officer on 03 5623 0631.
If the matter is not resolved to your satisfaction, the Health Services Commissioner who assists with complaint resolution, can be
contacted on 03 9655 5200.

1. Baw Baw Health and Community Care Centre
Young St Drouin Victoria 3820
ph: 03 5625 0200 fax: 03 5625 0204
email: bbhcc@wghg.com.au

2. Community Health Services - Warragul
31-35 Gladstone St Warragul Victoria 3820
ph: 03 5624 3500 fax: 03 5624 3555
email: wgcsd@wghg.com.au

3. West Gippsland Hospital
41 Landsborough Street, Warragul Victoria 3820
ph: 03 5623 0611  fax: 03 5623 0609
email: info@wghg.com.au

4. Warragul Linen Service
Ley Street, Warragul Victoria 3820
ph: 03 5623 4056  fax: 03 5623 5074
email: info@wls.com.au

5. Cooinda Lodge 
Landsborough St Warragul Victoria 3820
ph: 03 5623 0769 fax: 03 5623 0896
email: cooinda.clerk@wghg.com.au

6. Andrews House
42 School Rd, Trafalgar Victoria 3824
ph: 03 5637 4100 fax: 03 5633 1018
email: ah.office@wghg.com.au

7. Community Services - Trafalgar
9 Contingent Street Trafalgar Victoria 3824
ph: 5633 1977  email: traf.chs@wghg.com.au

8. Rawson Community Health Centre
PO Rawson Victoria 3825
ph: 03 5165 3236 fax: 03 5165 3268
email: rawson.chc@wghg.com.au

Where we are



Head Office
West Gippsland Hospital
41 Landsborough Street,

Warragul Victoria 3820
Telephone: 03 5623 0611
Facsimile: 03 5623 0896
Email: info@wghg.com.au

www.wghg.com.au




